
  1 

 

Agenda 

Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213740 
 

 

E-mail: paul.bateman@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 14 September 2021 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 6.00 PM 
 

First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
THE MEETING WILL BE BROADCAST LIVE 
 

You can watch this meeting via this weblink: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 
 
If you are attending in person you should bring a portable device, such as a laptop or 
tablet to listen to and watch the meeting. You should also bring a headset/headphones. 

 

Members of the Committee: 

David Bretherton (Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti (Vice-
Chair) 
Ken Arlett 
Tim Bearder 
Elizabeth Gillespie 

Lorraine Hillier 
George Levy 
Axel Macdonald 
Jo Robb 

Ian Snowdon 
Alan Thompson 

 
Substitutes 

Celia Wilson 
Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
Stefan Gawrysiak 
Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 
Mocky Khan 
Jane Murphy 
Caroline Newton 

Sue Roberts 
David Turner 
Kellie Hinton 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

1  Chair's announcements   
 

To receive any announcements from the chair and general housekeeping matters. 
 
2  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
3  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members. 
 
4  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn. 

 
5  Proposals for site visits   

 
6  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   
 

Development control applications 

 
 

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information 

 
All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number.  
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 

 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page 

 
     
7  114 Broadway, Conversion and extension of existing P21/S2624/FUL 7 - 24 



  3 

 

Didcot   building to create a residential 
development of 6 apartments to 
provide 2 x 3-bedroom apartments, 2 
x 2-bedroom apartments and 2 x 1-
bedroom apartments including 
amenity space to the rear (as 
amplified by Energy Statement 
received 7 July 2021)  
(as amplified by desk study 
regarding contamination received 10 
August 2021). As amended by plans 
received from agent on 08 
September in relation to National 
Space Standards. 

 

     
8  11 Thameside, 

Henley-on-
Thames   

To rear of listed building, alteration 
of existing modern extension to 
widen its footprint and conversion 
from single to double storey (glass 
and metal cladding) plus addition of 
adjacent single storey glass 
extension.  Internal floor plan 
alterations to install a new stair, 
removal of c20 staircase, new 
partitions at first floor level and 
opening up of rear elevation at g/f 
and 1/f levels for proposed rear 
extensions.  Removal of existing 
staircase, fireplace and modern 
internal partitions.  Retrospective 
application for sub-division of roof 
space into one large room plus small 
storage room and internal staircase, 
involving removal of internal section 
of chimney.  Provision of two rear 
dormer windows in the rear roof (as 
amended by plans received 17 
December 2020 reducing size of 
rear extension and providing 
additional supporting information). 

P20/S2809/HH 
and 
P20/S2812/LB 

25 - 46 

 

     
9  Land to rear of 

16 Reading 
Road, Henley-
on-Thames   

Erection of a three-storey building to 
provide three 1-bedroom flats 
(Daylight and Sunlight report 
received 29th May 2020; amended 
elevation received 23rd June 2020, 
clarifying external materials to be 
used for the stair core). 

P20/S0510/FUL 47 - 66 

 

     
10  Land next to 

Oak House 
Cottage, track 
leading to Box 

Proposed new 4-bedroom residential 
dwelling, built within the garden of 
Oak House Cottage. New single 

P20/S1991/FUL 67 - 90 

 



  4 

 

Cottage 
Common Lane, 
Binfield Heath   

storey, single car, oak frame car port 
(as amended by plans 14 October 
2020 to reduce width of property and 
reduce glazing along south 
elevation) (as amended by plans 
received 2 March 2021 to move 
property further away from trees 
marginally) (as supported by 
Arboricultural Information received 
2021-03-02) (as amplified by 
information received 2021-05-19). 

     
11  50 Hardings, 

Chalgrove   
Retrospective planning permission 
for a radio amateur mast, rotator and 
antenna system. 

P21/S2041/HH 91 - 
100 

 



  5 

 

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S2624/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 7.6.2021 
 PARISH DIDCOT 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Celia Wilson 

Axel Macdonald 
Mocky Khan 

 APPLICANT Mrs Sarah Brown 
 SITE 114 Broadway, Didcot, OX11 8AB 
 PROPOSAL Conversion and extension of existing building to 

create a residential development of 6 apartments to 
provide 2 x 3-bedroom apartments, 2 x 2-bedroom 
apartments and 2 x 1-bedroom apartments including 
amenity space to the rear.  
(As amplified by Energy Statement received 7 July 
2021). 
(As amplified by desk study regarding contamination 
received 10 August 2021). As amended by plans 
received from agent on 08 September in relation to 
National Space Standards 
 
 

 OFFICER Kim Gould 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application has been referred to planning committee at the discretion of the 

planning manager. It was deferred at the meeting on 1 September to allow officers to 
consider the implications of an appeal decision for two flats in Goring received earlier 
that day which was dismissed and referred to the National Space Standards. 
 

1.2 Amended plans have subsequently been submitted which demonstrate that all 6 flats 
meet the national space standards. 
 

1.3 The site lies within the built-up limits of Didcot, which has Garden Town status, within 
a line of predominantly commercial properties on the Broadway. An OS extract 
showing the site’s location is attached as Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 The site currently comprises a vacant retail unit at ground floor (previously a food 
shop specialising in Eastern European food) with residential flat at first- floor. 
 

1.5 There is a narrow existing vehicular access directly off Broadway that leads to a yard 
area to the rear of the site. 
 

1.6 There is an existing single-storey extension to the rear of the property which is in a 
poor state of repair. 
 

1.7 Planning permission was granted under planning ref P08/W0029 for the demolition of 
existing single storey rear building; the erection of a two-storey rear extension and 
conversion of existing loft (including raising of roof) to create 5 number flats. This was 
renewed in 2010 under ref P10/W1520/EX. An extract of the plans approved under 
this scheme is attached as Appendix 2. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2624/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 
1.8 The 2008 and 2010 permissions were never implemented. 

 
1.9 The proposal. This application seeks full planning permission for the conversion and 

extension of existing building to create a residential development of 6 apartments to 
provide 1 x 3-bedroom apartments, 3 x 2-bedroom apartments and 3 x 1-bedroom 
apartments including amenity space to the rear. The key difference between the 
previously approved scheme and the current proposal is the creation of an additional 
flat by the conversion of the existing shop at ground floor. 
 

1.10 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the applications are attached as 
Appendix 3. Full copies of the plans and supporting information together with 
consultation responses are available for inspection on the council’s website at 
www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Didcot Town Council – No objections to this application – following comments made: 

 

 Lack of parking provision  

 Small, shared amenity space is overshadowed by buildings 

 Disappointed to see the loss of a small retail unit. 
 
Contaminated Land – Following the submission of a Sub Surface Site Investigation 
Specialists Desk Survey with Walkover Survey – No objection subject to conditions 
requiring investigation for contamination prior to the commencement of development 
and produce a contaminated land remediation strategy if necessary; any land 
remediation strategy to be completed before the development is occupied and the 
applicant to inform the LPA if contamination not previously identified is discovered 
during development. 
 
OCC Highways Liaison Officer – No objection subject to the following conditions: 
 

 Cycle parking facilities to be provided prior to the occupation of the development 

 Construction Traffic Management Plan to be submitted prior to the 
commencement of development. 

 Existing access to be made pedestrian only and face kerbing reinstated 
 
Waste Management Officer – No objection following the submission of further 
clarification – I am satisfied that this fully answers my queries in relation to bin storage 
and collection  
 
Strategic Property Team – Objection  
 

 Scale and intensity of the development takes no account of the privacy of our 
neighbouring buildings  

 Proposal is contrary to policy DES1 of the SOLP 

 The development will severely impact on the current privacy of the council’s 
interest and potential future development given the scale and intensity including 
particularly the overlooking windows of the rear flats located right up to and 
overlooking the boundary of the council’s interest. 

 
Council’s energy consultant – Following the submission of further information – No 
objection – the proposal complies with policy DES10. 
 

Page 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

Drainage – No objection subject to pre-commencement conditions in relation to foul 
and surface water drainage 
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P10/W1520/EX - Approved (18/11/2010) 

Extension of time for Planning Permission P08/W0029. 
 
P08/W0029 - Approved (14/03/2008) 
Demolition of existing single storey rear building; the erection of a two-storey rear 
extension and conversion of existing loft (including raising of roof) to create 5 number 
flats. 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 N/A 
 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local planning authority shall 
have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the 
application, and to any other material considerations. The council’s adopted 
development plan is the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP).  
 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
DES9  -  Renewable Energy 
EMP3 – Retention of employment land 
EP3  -  Waste collection and Recycling 
H1  -  Delivering New Homes 
H9- Affordable housing 
H11 – Housing mix 
H2  -  New Housing in Didcot 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
STRAT3 – Didcot Market Town  
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
INF4 – Water resources 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
 N/A 

 
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 

Page 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P10/W1520/EX
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/W0029


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 The principle of residential development  

 Loss of employment land 

 Housing mix including National Space Standards 

 Design and character 

 Residential amenity 

 Access and Parking 

 Contamination 

 Drainage 

 Sustainable design and carbon reduction. 
 

6.2 The principle of residential development 
Local Plan Policy STRAT1 provides the overall strategy for the district. Of relevance to 
this application, the policy focusses major new development in Science Vale including 
sustainable growth at Didcot Garden Town and Culham so that this area can play an 
enhanced role in providing homes, jobs and services with improved transport 
connectivity. Local Plan Policy H1 stems from the overall strategy and relates to 
proposals for residential development on land that is not specifically allocated for 
development in the plan. Part 3 (iii) of the policy states that development will be 
permitted if it is within the existing built-up areas of towns and larger villages (as 
defined in the settlement hierarchy); provided an important open space of public; 
environmental, historical or ecological value is not lost, nor an important public view 
harmed.  
 

6.3 The application site is located within the existing built-up area of the town of Didcot and 
its development would not result in the loss of an important open space of public; 
environmental, historical, or ecological value nor the loss of or harm to an important 
public view. The principle of the development is therefore in accordance with Local Plan 
Policies STRAT1 and H1. In additional to this, the site is in a sustainable location, within 
walking and cycling distance of Didcot town centre and railway station. As such, the 
principle of this development is acceptable. 
 

6.4 Loss of employment land 
Part of the ground floor of the existing building has, until recently, been in retail use. It is 
currently vacant. Policy EMP3 of the SOLP seeks to retain existing employment land to 
promote and grow a balanced, sustainable economy and local services. Policy STRAT 
3 of the SOLP seeks to strike a balance between providing housing growth and 
economic growth. 
 

6.5 The agent has advised that the shop previously  employed 1 to 2 people. The 
conversion of the ground floor to residential use will result in the loss of a retail unit. In 
relation to employment, however, the new development will require a cleaner and a 
gardener to maintain the communal areas of the development. As such, there will be no 
overall loss in employment. In addition, new legislation was introduced in August 2021 
enabling the conversion of shops to dwellings under permitted development subject to 
a number of conditions which illustrates the Government’s aim to create more dwellings 

Page 10



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

in this way. This proposal does not comply with the new regulations so full planning 
permission is required. 
 

6.6 In addition, there are several business units vacant or for sale in close proximity to the 
application site including numbers 144, 190, 120, 118, 124, 125, 140 to 142 and 12 
units within the Orchard Centre which are advertised as being, or soon to be, available.  
 

6.7 This application provides the opportunity to provide 6 highly sustainable units of 
residential accommodation. There are residential properties directly opposite the site so 
a residential use would not appear out of keeping in this locality. Whilst retail 
employment will be lost, other employment opportunities will be available as a result of 
the development and I consider that overall, there is no loss of employment. 
 

6.8 Housing mix 
Policy H11 of the SOLP seeks to provide a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet the 
current and future households on all new development. In this proposal a mix of 1, 2 
and 3-bed dwellings are provided which meets the requirements of policy H11. 
 

6.9 Policy H11 also seeks to ensure that all 1 and 2 bed market housing dwellings should 
be designed to meet the Nationally Described Space Standards. Following the 
submission of revised drawings all six flats now meet these standards.  
 

6.10 Affordable Housing 
Policy H9 of the SOLP seeks 40% affordable housing on all sites with a net gain of 10 
or more dwellings. In this case, there is a net gain of only 4 dwellings and therefore 
affordable housing does not need to be provided. 
 

6.11 Design and character 
Policy DES2 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that all new development is designed to 
reflect the positive features that make up the character of the local area and should 
both physically and visually enhance and complement the surroundings. The existing 
building is two-storey. The property to the east is single storey with three-storey 
properties immediately to the west. The proposed development would be three-storey 
so would not appear out of keeping in this locality. From the Broadway, the proposal 
would appear as a two-storey property with rooflights in the roof.  
 

6.12 The proposed extension to the rear is large and  extends some 11metres from the rear 
elevation of the existing property. This large extension will not, however, be visually 
intrusive as the plot is relatively narrow and will be screened from the Broadway by 
existing buildings. Also, the depth of the extension is no greater than what has already 
been approved under the 2008 and 2010 planning permissions. 
 

6.13 The proposed materials for the walls and roof will be facing brick and slate tiles to 
match those on the existing building. The residential properties opposite the site are 
constructed using brick and tiles and therefore the proposed development will be in 
keeping with the existing development.  
 

6.14 Residential amenity of neighbours 
Policy DES6 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that development can demonstrate that it will 
not result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses by way of, 
for example, loss of privacy, dominance, noise etc. The site backs onto the service yard 
for the Orchard Centre. Any windows facing north will, therefore, not overlook the rear 
gardens of dwellings. Windows in the east and west elevation will look towards the 
properties either side of no 114 in the same way as they did in the 2008 permission. 
Windows in the western elevation are annotated on the submitted plans to be obscure 

Page 11



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

glazed. This would minimise any potential overlooking into the private car parking area 
to the west of the site. 

  
6.15 The council’s strategic development team have objected to this proposal on the 

grounds that this development will have an adverse impact on the development 
potential of the land in the council’s ownership which is adjacent to the site. No 
planning application has been submitted for the development of this land. The proposal 
which is the subject of this current planning application must be considered within the 
context of the relevant development plans, Government guidance and existing site 
circumstances. The proposal cannot be assessed against a scheme which may or may 
not be submitted as part of a formal proposal in the future.  
 

6.16 Residential amenity of occupants. The proposed development is a mixture of 1, 2 
and 3-bed flats. Policy DES5 of the SOLP requires a private outdoor garden or amenity 
space, or alternatively a shared amenity area for all new dwellings. The SODG sets out 
the minimum amount of private amenity for 1-bedroom units at 35 square metres, 
50square metres of 2-bed units and 100sqm for 3-bed units . A modest communal 
garden of some 42sqm is provided with this scheme. As such, this proposal does not 
meet the council’s requirements in relation to amenity space requirement. 
 

6.17 The site is, however, in a central location with good access by foot to public open space 
and other amenities within the town and surrounding areas. I do not believe that the 
lack of amenity space would be harmful to residential amenity in this case. People who 
live in town centres do not necessarily want gardens and the town centre offers a great 
deal in the way of amenities such that a lack of outdoor space is not, in my view, 
harmful in this instance. Similar schemes have been provided elsewhere in Didcot 
where the lack of amenity space for flats in town centres has not been considered a 
reason to refuse the application. Two examples of this are at 124 Broadway – a 
scheme which was recently approved under ref P20/S2763/FUL and 123 Broadway 
approved under planning ref P21/S1117/FUL. 
 

6.18 Access and Parking 
Policy TRANS5 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that all development provides safe access 
and exit onto the highway network. This proposal is a car free development. When the 
2008 planning permission was granted the highway authority acknowledged that the 
existing access has inadequate visibility to be used as a vehicular access and required, 
by condition, that the access was modified to be pedestrian use only, to prevent cars 
from parking within the site and being unable to exit the site safely. A similar 
requirement is recommended with this application.  
 

6.19 The site benefits from a high level of accessibility with many typical town centre 
amenities such as shops, services, employment opportunities and public transport links 
within walking distance. Furthermore, there are on-street controls within the vicinity to 
prevent indiscriminate parking and additionally several car parks. 
 

6.20 It has been recommended that nine cycle stands are provided within the development, 
these are required to be covered and secure so as to provide cycle parking for the 
proposed residents and visitors in accordance with guidance. A Construction Traffic 
Management Plan has also been recommended to lessen the impact of construction 
vehicles onto the highway network, given the location of the proposal. These would be 
secured by way of conditions. 
 

6.21 Contamination 
At the request of the council’s environmental protection officer (EPO), the applicant has 
provided a desk and walk over survey which has identified potential sources of land 

Page 12



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

contamination which could present a significant risk to the proposed development. 
These include the former on-site and off-site industrial use. To ensure that any 
contamination risks are addressed, the EPO has recommended a number of conditions 
which the applicant has accepted. The council’s environmental protection officer no 
longer has any objection to this proposal on the grounds of contamination subject to 
these conditions.  
 

6.22 Drainage 
Policy INF4 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that development proposals demonstrate that 
there is or will be adequate water supply, surface water, foul drainage, and sewerage 
treatment capacity to serve the whole development. In this case, the council’s drainage 
engineer has no objection to this proposal subject to conditions requiring details of foul 
and surface water drainage to be submitted prior to the commencement of 
development. 
 

6.23 Sustainable design and carbon reduction  
 Policy DES10 of the SOLP requires residential development to achieve a 40% 

reduction in carbon emissions compared with a code 2013 Building Regulation 
compliant base case. The applicant has submitted an Energy Statement in accordance 
with the requirements of DES10. 
 

6.24 The council’s energy consultant has confirmed that the energy statement demonstrates 
that the proposed development would meet the requirements of policy DES10. 
 

6.25 Pre-commencement conditions 
There are several pre-commencement conditions recommended relating to drainage, 
contaminated land and highways. These have been agreed with the planning agent. 
 

6.26 Community Infrastructure Levy 
The proposal is CIL liable. The forms and information required at this stage of the 
proposal have been submitted. 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted because the application site is 

located in a sustainable location in close proximity to Didcot Town Centre and Didcot 
Railway Station. The proposal for 6 flats in this location within the built-up area of 
Didcot accords with the overall spatial strategy (policy STRAT1) and the approach for 
delivering new homes to the district (Policy H1) set out in the South Oxfordshire Local 
Plan 2035.Whilst the private amenity area provided does not meet the council’s 
standard, there are other amenities available in this town centre location to balance in 
the equation. In other respects, the proposal accords with the Development Plan 
policies. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
 1 : Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 

2 : Approved plans  
3 : Materials as on plan 
4 : Energy Statement verification  
5 : Access and vision splays 
6 : Contaminated land 
7: Contaminated land 
8: Unsuspected contamination  
9: Foul water details to be submitted 

Page 13



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

10: surface water details to be submitted 
 
 
 
Author:         Kim Gould 
Contact No: 01235 422600 
Email:           Planning@southoxon.giv.uk 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

mailto:Planning@southoxon.giv.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7
P

21/S
2624/FU

L

SAV_KIMGOU
Typewriter
The Site

SAV_KIMGOU_1
Arrow



Appendix 2

P
age 16

SAV_KIMGOU_2
Typewriter
Elevations of scheme approved under planning ref P08/W0029



P
age 17

SAV_KIMGOU_3
Typewriter
Elevations of scheme approved under planning ref P08/W0029



Site Plan -
As Proposed

/ / / / /

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

118
(TR

AIN
 Youth Project)

/

/

/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/

) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

Previous
Shop
Entrance

SVP SVPRWP SVP

112 Broadway -
"Vintage Turkish Barber"

Gully

Tarmac surface
to entrance

Block Paved Surface

118 Broadway -
"Train Youth Project"

Side Entrance
to Adjacent
commercial unit

Sapling

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

S
ite B

oundary
Existing screen of m

ixed m
ature trees

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

S
ite B

oundary

Manhole

Manhole

Pavement Area

Pavement Area

Pavement Area

Pavement Area

3
0
 m

ins. restricted parking bays

+61.83 +61.75+61.90
+61.96

+61.92

Li
ne

 o
f 
C

an
op

y 
O

ve
r

New Covered Bin Store

1100 litres 1100 litres

Recycling General Waste

New lawn

New planted border New planted border

Mowing strip

140 litres

Food waste

New Entrance Gates

N
ew

 tim
ber boundary fence - 2

.1
m

 high

New timber boundary fence - 2.1m high

Canopy over

Existing boundary masonry wall to be maintaine
d

Neighbouring Building

Existing  structure / construction

Proposed structure / construction

1 2 3 4 5

Metres

NORTH

660 litres

Recycling

Existing external SVPExisting RWP Existing SVP

W

Bedroom 1
12 sq.m.Bedroom 2

9.0 sq.m.

Corridor
3.6 sq.m.

TV

Kitchen

Lounge

W

Dining
Bathroom
4.2 sq.m.

Bedroom 3
9.0 sq.m.

W

Cycles
Apt. 2
2b3p

67.0 sq.m.

WCyl.
1.0 sq.m.

Bedroom 2
12.0 sq.m.

Corridor
11.1 sq.m.

TVTV

33.0 sq.m.

RWPRWP

RWP

6 Post Boxes

1 & 2

Stairway

2

1

Entrance

15

14

13

1211109

8

7

6

5

4

3 2 1

SVP

RWP

Window at high level Window at high level Window at high level

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

RWP

RWP

RWP

3 2 1

Up

Up

3 & 4

5 & 6

Cyl.
0.9 sq.m.

St.
1.4 sq.m.

Bathroom
4.3 sq.m

TV

Apt. 1
3b4p
74.1sq.m

SVP

W

Bedroom 1
9.0 sq.m.

K / L / D
23 sq.m

A

A

Unit No. 1

Apt. No. 1

71.3 767 Ground Floor

First Floor87.8 945

Totals 159.1

EXISTING AREAS

Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

1712

1

2

3

4

5

2b3p

2b3p

2b3p

2b3p

1b2p

71.3

67.0

71.3

56.3

767

767

606

721

Ground Floor

Ground Floor

First Floor

First Floor

Second Floor46.5 500

PROPOSED AREAS

Apt. No. Type Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

39.0 420

351.4 3781Totals

6 1b2p Second Floor

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire. OX11 8AB.
- to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Site Plan
As Proposed

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 06 A

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--A MSAmended ground floor plan 07.09.21

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

indicated

Appendix 3

P
age 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
CL62.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
CL61.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
CL61.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
parapet70.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
parapet71.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
parapet66.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
64.19H

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
66.95H

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
69.68H

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
68.26S

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
65.56S

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
61.85S

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
STN1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
STN3

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
STN5

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
STN6

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
STN7

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
STN8

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
STN9

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
IL60.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
100%%CFWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
blocked



Shop window with
aluminium frame

Existing shop sign

Aluminium door with
upper and lower glazed portion

Glazed fanlight

Glazed side light

UPVC windows:
with 2 x opening lights.
Colour - White

Painted brickwork

White render

White render

UPVC windows

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Shop Window

114 BROADWAY ACCESS TO REAR OF
114 BROADWAY 112 BROADWAY

APPLICATION SITE

Commercial Unit at
ground floor
(Currently used as a barbers)

Entrance
door

116 BROADWAY

Commercial Unit at
ground floor

Flat Roof

White render

Natural slate roof covering

Timber fascia board

White render

Chimney stack
to rear of ridge

White UPVC windows
with 2 x opening lights

Brickwork plinth beneath window

White render

Painted brickwork

Front Elevation (South) - to Broadway
As Existing

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

East Sectional Elevation from Delivery Access

Natural slate roof covering

Timber fascia board

Chimney stack
to rear of ridge

Brickwork

Brickwork is painted up to
first floor level

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Natural slate roof covering

Protruding window features
to main facade windows

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Previous opening has
been bricked up

Brickwork

Brickwork is painted up to
first floor level

Concrete lintel

Flat roof

UPVC gutter -
Colour : black

Natural slate roof covering

RWP

Soil pipe

Rear Yard S
ite

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Rear Elevation (North) -
As Existing

Natural slate roof covering

Exposed concrete lintel

Brickwork

UPVC window

UPVC window

Flat roof with central ridge and falls to drain

Brick chimney stack

Door into rear yard

114 BROADWAYACCESS TO REAR OF
114 BROADWAY112 BROADWAY

APPLICATION SITE

116 BROADWAY

Lightweight screen with access gate

Gate

Covered
Storage Space

 / Shed

Lightweight timber construction
in poor condition

REAR YARD

UPVC window
Colour - White

White render

SVP
Colour - Black

Lightweight timber structure

UPVC window
Colour - White

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire. OX11 8AB.
- to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Elevations as Existing
Sheet 1

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 04 -

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--- -- -

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

P
age 19



East Sectional Elevation from Delivery Access

East Elevation from Neighbouring Property

Natural slate roof covering

Timber fascia board

Chimney stack
to rear of ridge

Brickwork

Brickwork is painted up to
first floor level

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Natural slate roof covering

Protruding window features
to main facade windows

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Previous opening has
been bricked up

Brickwork

Brickwork is painted up to
first floor level

Concrete lintel

Flat roof

UPVC gutter -
Colour : black

Natural slate roof covering

RWP

Soil pipe

Window to no. 112 Broadway

Window cill

Window head

Window to no. 112 Broadway

Window cill

Window head

Outline of no. 114 Broadway
(application site)

Rear portion of 114 Broadway
(application site)

114 BROADWAY112 BROADWAY

Outline of no. 114 Broadway
(application site)

Outline of no. 114 Broadway
(application site)

Rear Yard

Rear Yard

S
ite

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

Outline of no. 112 Broadway

Outline of no. 112 Broadway

Outline of no. 112 Broadway at line of access
road and site boundary

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire. OX11 8AB.
 - to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Elevations as Existing
Sheet 2

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 05 -

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--- -- -

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

P
age 20



Natural slate roof covering

Natural slate roof covering

Protruding window features
to main facade windows

116 BROADWAY

Brickwork decoration to adjacent property (112 Broadway)

Parapet capping to adjacent property (112 Broadway)

Render finish to gable of adjacent property. Colour - White
(112 Broadway)

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

APPLICATION SITE - 114 BROADWAY

Timber fascia board

Existing chimney stack
to be removed

Line of previous roof

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

West Elevation from Carpark to Neighbouring Property as Proposed

116 BROADWAY

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

New timber boundary fence - 2.1m high
on site boundary

New fence shown in distance

SVP
Rooflight

SECOND FLOOR

SECOND FLOORSECOND FLOOR

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Obscure
Glass & Restrictor

Rear Elevation (North) - as Proposed

Natural slate roof covering

Line of existing roof to be removed

Existing brick chimney stack
to be removed

114 BROADWAYACCESS TO REAR OF
114 BROADWAY112 BROADWAY

APPLICATION SITE

116 BROADWAY

REAR GARDEN

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

SECOND FLOORSECOND FLOOR

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire
 - to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Elevations 
As Proposed - Sheet 2

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 10 -

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--- -- -

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.P

age 21



Existing White UPVC
windows:with 2 x opening
lights to remain

114 BROADWAY ACCESS TO REAR OF
114 BROADWAY 112 BROADWAY

APPLICATION SITE

Commercial Unit at
ground floor
(Currently used as a barbers)

Entrance
door

116 BROADWAY

Existing white render

Timber fascia board to be refurbished and
repaired where necessary

Existing white render

Chimney stack
to be removed

Existing White UPVC windows
with 2 x opening lights to remain

Brickwork plinth
beneath window to elongated
across full width of facade

Front Elevation (South) - to Broadway as Proposed

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Existing opening to
be blocked-up with new
masonry insulated cavity wall.

New white UPVC windows
with opening lights. Opening lights to be
fitted with restrictors.

Existing signage to be
removed. Exposed facade to be
repaired and rendered to match
first floor.

Decorative brick headers

New white render

Existing opening to
be blocked-up with new
masonry insulated cavity wall.

New white UPVC windows
with opening lights. Opening
lights to be fitted with restrictors.

Decorative brick cill feature

Rooflight Rooflight

SECOND FLOORSECOND FLOOR

East Sectional Elevation from Delivery Access as Proposed

Natural slate roof covering

Timber fascia board

Existing chimney stack
to be removed

Brickwork

Brickwork is painted up to
first floor level

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

UPVC windows:
Colour - White

Natural slate roof covering

Protruding window features
to main facade windows

Previous opening has
been bricked up

Line of previous roof

RWP

Soil pipe

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOORFIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

Existing external SVPExisting SVP

SVP

New Roof

New timber boundary
fence - 2.1m high
on site boundary

SECOND FLOORSECOND FLOOR

SECOND FLOORSECOND FLOOR

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire
 - to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Elevations
As Proposed - Sheet 1

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 09 A

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--A MSElevation amended to show 07.09.21

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

extended dormers

P
age 22



Existing external SVP

Existing SVP extended
upwards to receive
drainage from new
second floor level

Existing RWP Existing SVP

W

Bedroom 1
12 sq.m.Bedroom 2

9.0 sq.m.

Corridor
3.6 sq.m.

TV

Kitchen

Lounge

W

Dining
Bathroom
4.2 sq.m.

Bedroom 3
9.0 sq.m.

W

Cycles
Apt. 2
2b3p

67.0 sq.m.

Ground Floor Plan -
As Proposed

WCyl.
1.0 sq.m.

Bedroom 2
12.0 sq.m.

Corridor
11.1 sq.m.

TVTV

33.0 sq.m.

RWPRWP

RWP

6 Post Boxes

1 & 2

Stairway

2

1

Entrance

15

14

13

1211109

8

7

6

5

4

3 2 1

SVP

RWP

Window at high level Window at high level Window at high level

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

Obscure glass
Restricted to 100mm opening

RWP

RWP

RWP

Existing doorway to
be partially blocked
to form window with cill

Existing doorway to
be partially blocked
to form window with cill

Previous doorway to
be adapted to form
window with cill

Existing  structure / construction

Proposed structure / construction

1 2 3 4 5

Metres

NORTH

3 2 1

Up

Up

3 & 4

5 & 6

Cyl.
0.9 sq.m.

St.
1.4 sq.m.

First Floor Plan -
As Proposed

Home Office
4.2 sq.m.

Bedroom 2
12.0 sq.m

W

Bathroom
4.3 sq.m

TV

TV

Corridor
6.3 sq.m.

W

Corridor
6.0 sq.m.

Kitchen

Lounge

W

DiningApt. 4
2b3p
67.0 sq.m.

Apt. 3
2b3p
71.3 sq.m

New Window

RWPRWP

Cyl.
1.5 sq.m

St.
1.5 sq.m.

Bathroom
4.0 sq.m

Bedroom 1
12.0 sq.m.

Bedroom 2
8.5 sq.m.

36.3 sq.m.

S
ta

irw
ay

3

4

15

14

13

1124

21

20

19

17 16

25

RWP

Existing RWP Existing SVP
Existing SVP extended upwards to receive
drainage from new second floor level

SVP

Rooflight

SVP

RWP

RWP

RWP

12

18

23

22

Up

Up

W

Bedroom 1
9.0 sq.m.

K / L / D
23 sq.m

Bathroom
4.3 sq.m

TV

Apt. 1
3b4p
74.1sq.m

SVP

W

Bedroom 1
9.0 sq.m.

K / L / D
23 sq.m

Unit No. 1

Apt. No. 1

71.3 767 Ground Floor

First Floor87.8 945

Totals 159.1

EXISTING AREAS

Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

1712

1

2

3

4

5

3b4p

2b3p

2b3p

2b3p

1b2p

71.3

67.0

74.1

67.0

767

797

721

721

Ground Floor

Ground Floor

First Floor

First Floor

Second Floor50.0 538

PROPOSED AREAS

Apt. No. Type Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

50.0

379.4 4082Totals

6 1b2p Second Floor

A

A

B

B

A

A

B

B

538

Cupboard
1.1 sq.m.

Cyl.
1.0 sq.m

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire
 - to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Ground & First Floor Plans
As Proposed

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 07 C

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--A MSSection locations indicated 30.06.21

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

--B MSApt. No.1 increased in floor area 05.09.21
to 74.1 sq.m.
Apt. No.3 amended to 2B3P 

--C MS07.09.21Apt. No.3 amended to include 
home office.

P
age 23



Existing  structure / construction

Proposed structure / construction

1 2 3 4 5

Metres

NORTH

RWP

Apt. 5
1b2p
50.0 sq.m.

Lounge

Corridor

Dining
W

Bedroom
12.0 sq.m.

TV

Bathroom
5.5 sq.m.

31

30

28

29
23

Void

Storage in roof space

Fall

Fall

Ridge

Valley

Va
lle

y

Rooflight

Rooflight

Fall

Fall

22 sq.m.

3233

RWP

RWPRWP

Existing SVP extended upwards to receive
drainage from new second floor level

New SVP

Existing SVP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

5

Rooflight

Rooflight

Bedroom
12.5 sq.m.

K / L / D

Study AreaSt.
2.5 sq.m.

Bathroom
5.3 sq.m.

Apt. 6
1b2p
50.0 sq.m.

Glazed
Walkway

Rooflight 1.5m headroom

1.8m headroom

2.0m headroom

2524

Up Void

Second Floor Plan -
As Proposed

2726

6

W

Roof Plan -
As Proposed

Fall

Fall

Fall

Fall

Fall

Fall

Va
lle

y

R
id

ge

Ridge

Verge Verge

VergeVerge

Valley

Valley

Va
lle

y

Brickwork chimney
stack to be removed

Ridge

New
Rooflight

Fall

Fall Fall

Fall

Fall

Fall

New
Rooflight

Existing Roof

New Roof

New Roof

RWPRWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

Rooflight

RWP

RWP

Rooflight

Fall

Fall

Fall

Dormer

Dormer

Corridor
8.6 sq.m.

A

A

B

B

B

B
A

A

9

10

11

12

13 155 7

1 2

86 1614

3 4

16 x Photo-Voltaic Panels to
west facing roof slope.
PV size = 1652 x 994mm

16 x Photo-Voltaic Panels to
west facing roof slope.
PV size = 1652 x 994mm

9 11 13 155 7

1 2 3 4
Unit No. 1

Apt. No. 1

71.3 767 Ground Floor

First Floor87.8 945

Totals 159.1

EXISTING AREAS

Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

1712

1

2

3

4

5

3b4p

2b3p

2b3p

2b3p

1b2p

71.3

67.0

74.1

67.0

767

797

721

721

Ground Floor

Ground Floor

First Floor

First Floor

Second Floor50.0 538

PROPOSED AREAS

Apt. No. Type Sq.m. Sq.ft. Level

50.0

379.4 4082Totals

6 1b2p Second Floor538

St.
1.5 sq.m.

Fall FallFall

Fall FallFall

Fall Fall

Drawing No : Rev. No :

Date : Scale :

Drawn By : Checked :

Drawing Title :

Project No :

Project :

@ :

Client :

Approved :

Client Ref Number :

Printwork Ltd.

012

Conversion & Extension of 114 Broadway
Didcot, Oxfordshire
 - to form 6 Apartments

20-01

Second Floor Plan & Roof Plan
As Proposed

MS - -

March 2021 1/50 A1

20 - 01 - PL - 08 D

Middleton Top Architects 
C H AR T E R E D    A R C H I T E C T S

8 Pink Street, , Haworth 
West Yorkshire. BD22 8AX

  tel. 07943 197025
middletontoparchitects@gmail.com

NOTE
This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be

checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to the
 Architects. All material is produced on behalf

of the Architects. All drawings to be read in
conjunction with specification where applicable.

Rev. Drwn By.Description Appd.Date Chkd.

--A MSSection locations indicated 30.06.21

NOTE
These drawings have been prepared for the purpose
of a Planning Application only and should not be
used for construction purposes.

--B MSPhoto-voltaic panels indicated on 30.07.21
west facing roof

--C MSDormers increased in width to 05.09.21
provide additional area.

--D MSRoof plan updated to include 07.09.21
dormers 

P
age 24



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P20/S2809/HH and P20/S2812/LB 
 APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER & LISTED BUILDING CONSENT 
 REGISTERED 4.8.2020 
 PARISH HENLEY-ON-THAMES 
 WARD MEMBERS Ken Arlett 

Kellie Hinton 
Stefan Gawrysiak 

 APPLICANT Mrs Marisa Bucknall 
 SITE 11 Thameside, Henley-on-Thames, RG9 1BH 
 PROPOSAL To rear of listed building, alteration of existing 

modern extension to widen its footprint and 
conversion from single to double storey (glass and 
metal cladding) plus addition of adjacent single 
storey glass extension.  Internal floor plan 
alterations to install a new stair, removal of c20 
staircase, new partitions at first floor level and 
opening up of rear elevation at g/f and 1/f levels for 
proposed rear extensions.  Removal of existing 
staircase, fireplace and modern internal partitions.  
Retrospective application for sub-division of roof 
space into one large room plus small storage room 
and internal staircase, involving removal of internal 
section of chimney.  Provision of two rear dormer 
windows in the rear roof. (as amended by plans 
received 17 December 2020 reducing size of rear 
extension and providing additional supporting 
information) 

 OFFICER Victoria Clarke 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 These applications for planning permission and listed building consent were called to 

committee by Cllr Ken Arlett and were on the committee meeting agenda on 17 March 
2021.  Before the applications were presented at the meeting members voted in 
favour of deferring the application for a committee site visit.  It was not possible for the 
committee site visit to take place until now, due to the Covid-19 pandemic restrictions 
and the need to go inside the listed building to inspect the building and to access the 
rear garden.   
 

1.2 In May 2021, the applicant lodged an appeal against non-determination with the 
Planning Inspectorate but it has yet to be validated by the planning inspectorate.  The 
Council cannot therefore determine the applications but officers are instead 
seeking a resolution from the planning committee to establish whether they 
would approve or refuse the applications. 
 

1.3 Officers recommend the applications for approval for the reasons outlined in this 
report. 
 

1.4 The application site is shown at Appendix 1.  The property is a two storey terraced 
dwelling that fronts on the River Thames and is a Grade II listed building that was 
listed for its group value with 9, 10 and 12 Thameside.  The building has its origins in 
the C19 however it was substantially re-built and the roof was raised following severe 
flooding in 1894 and the remaining structure is almost entirely from that date. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S2809/HH


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

1.5 The listing description reads: 
Early C19. Rebuilt red brick facade with old tiled roof above wide eaves. Unusual 
stepped 3 stacks on northern side (possible remnants of larger stacks). Brick and 
stone string course between storeys. 2 storeys, 2 windows, sashes with glazing bars 
and cambered head linings.  Southern windows with margin lights. Side door and 
central modern door.  Flood levels of 1809 and 1894 marked in wall tablets. Grade II 
for group value here.  No 9 (Baltic House) forms part of a group with the listed 
buildings on Friday Street and also with Nos 10 to 12 (consec) Thameside. 
 

1.6 Many of the neighbouring properties that lie to the north, south and south west of the 
site are listed buildings.  The site lies within Henley Main Conservation Area and is an 
area of known archaeological interest (Medieval Village).  The site also falls within 
Flood Zone 3. 
 

1.7 The applications seek planning permission and listed building consent for internal 
alterations and a part single part two storey rear extension.  The plans are shown at 
Appendix 2. 
 

 Amended plans have been submitted to address concerns raised by officers about the 
impact on the historic fabric of the building and impact on neighbours. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Henley-on-Thames Town Council – Objection: 

 Impact on the listed building 

 Lack of respect for the character of the building 

 Impact of light spill from building on neighbours 
 
Historic England – No comment: 
This does not mean that we consider the proposals to be acceptable or unacceptable, 
simply that we are content for the application to be determined by the local planning 
authority following their own specialist conservation advice. 
 
County Archaeological Services (SODC) – No objection 
The site is located in an area of archaeological interest but the development is relatively 
small scale and therefore there are no archaeological constraints to the scheme. 
 
Conservation Officer – (South and Vale) – No objection subject to conditions: 
Having visited the site and undertaken an inspection of the internal layout and fabric I 
am satisfied that the proposed internal alterations do not harm the significance of the 
listed building subject to the retention of the first floor rear elevation window to the 
existing bathroom. 
 
Drainage Engineer - (South & Vale) – No objection: 

 The implementation of all the water exclusion measures and flood resilience 
measures listed in the ‘Response to consultation comments’ and ensuring the 
extension is watertight to 32.96 AOB will be the responsibility of Building Control 

 
The Henley Society – Objection: 

 Damage to fabric of listed building  

 Inappropriate materials and flat roofs of extensions 

 Impact on, and loss of light to, at least three neighbouring properties 
 
Oxford Architectural and Historical Society – Objection: 

 Loss of Victorian staircase and remaining early timber frame adjacent and 
primary fabric 

Page 26



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 Light pollution on neighbours and neighbouring listed buildings 
 
Henley Archaeological and Historical Group – Objection  

 Impact on the listed building. Large scale alterations that are destructive of the 
existing fabric. 

 The proposed demolitions of the rear house wall, the staircase and other 
internal alterations to the building would add up to the loss of much of the fabric 
and character of this simple Victorian house. 

 Proposed size and materials are out of character with listed building and harmful 
to its setting and that of neighbouring listed buildings. 

 Unneighbourly 

 Will make maintenance of boundary wall difficult 

 Inaccuracies in the submitted Heritage Statement 

 Potential structural harm, harm to the fabric and historic interest of adjoining 
timber framed listed buildings which are on shallow foundations, particularly the 
adjoining property no. 12 Thameside which is part of the original 16th Century 
three-bay house. 

 
Neighbours – Five letters of objection have been received: 

 Design and scale: monstrosity / ugly / overlarge 

 Unsuitable and unacceptable over-development of the site 

 Impact on the listed building / damage to fabric and character 

 Detrimental impact on the setting of adjoining listed buildings 

 Detrimental impact on character of conservation area  

 Scale, height, design, material and colour palette are inappropriate, fail to 
respect, and are out of keeping with the character and special architectural and 
historic qualities of conservation area and surrounding buildings 

 Intrusive and dominant presence 

 Run off from the extension causing damage to wall and flooding Friday Street 
properties 

 Visible over existing high wall and overbearing due to the closeness resulting in 
loss of light to Friday Street properties 

 Revised extension still dominates the garden of no. 12 Thameside / bulk and 
upward sloping roof will be overbearing, affect outlook and create 
overshadowing, enclosure and claustrophobic rear garden / feeling of discomfort 
and being dwarfed by its size and style  

 Loss of privacy from proposed rear dormer windows 

 Impact of construction work on the shallow foundations of neighbouring 
properties 
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P20/S1518/PEO – Planning advice (14/07/2020) 

Rear extension and internal alterations. 
 
P19/S3424/PEO – Planning advice (09/01/2020) 
Proposed double storey rear extension and re-modelling of internal spaces in the 
existing main house.(as amended by drawings & Heritage Appraisal received 9 
December 2019) 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 Not applicable 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 

Page 27

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S1518/PEO
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S3424/PEO


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES7  -  Efficient Use of Resources 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
ENV6  -  Historic Environment 
ENV7  -  Listed Buildings 
ENV8  -  Conservation Areas 
EP4  -  Flood Risk 
H20  -  Extensions to Dwellings 
INF4  -  Water Resources 
 

5.2 Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan 
DQS1 Local character 
EN1 Biodiversity 
 

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 

 
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 Current policy 

 Design, character and impact on the listed building  

 Residential amenity 

 Access and Parking 

 Other material planning considerations 
 

6.2 Current Policy 
The key policies for assessing this application are H20, DES1, ENV7 and ENV8. 
 

6.3 Policy H20 relates to extensions to dwellings.  It permits extensions provided that 
adequate and satisfactory parking is provided and sufficient amenity areas are provided 
for the extended dwelling.  Development should have regard to the South Oxfordshire 
Design Guide (SODG). 
 

6.4 Policy DES1 requires high quality design in accordance with a number of criteria, 
including that development should respect the local context, complementing the scale, 
height, density, grain, massing, type, and details of the surrounding area.   
 

6.5 Policy ENV7 states that proposals affecting a listed building will be expected to 
conserve, enhance or better reveal those elements which contribute to the heritage 
significance and / or its setting, respect any features of special architectural or historic 
interest, and be sympathetic to the listed building and its setting in terms of siting, size, 
scale, height, alignment, materials, finishes, design and form in order to retain the 

Page 28



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

special interest that justifies its designation through appropriate design, with regard to 
the South Oxfordshire Design Guide.   
 

6.6 Policy ENV8 requires that proposals for development within a Conservation Area must 
conserve or enhance its special interest, character, setting and appearance. 
 

6.7 Design, character and impact on the listed building 
The building has its origins in the C19 however it was substantially re-built and the roof 
raised following severe flooding in 1894 and the remaining structure is almost entirely 
from that date.  The building is a pleasant Victorian house the interior of which is not 
particularly striking or a distinct example of the period although the cellular layout and 
central stair of that date remain legible.  Unlike its neighbour there is no timber framing 
exposed or legible.   
 

6.8 To the rear is a single storey C20 extension that projects along the southern side of the 
courtyard garden.  The front elevation retains the clearest references to its historic 
character and previous association to the neighbouring No.12.  This can be seen in the 
remaining service door to the side passageway and the wider windows referencing the 
former shop/commercial function it served.  There is no doubt the attractively detailed 
Victorian frontage makes an important contribution to the conservation area. 
 

6.9 Officers have no objection to the replacement of the existing single storey rear 
extension.  It is a much later addition to the building and is not of historic interest.   
 

6.10 The proposed rear extension would be subservient to the main building.  Its 
contemporary design serves to make the extension distinct from the original listed 
building and neighbouring historic properties.  Given that the property is the product of 
much alteration and its neighbours have retained more of their pre-flood fabric and 
character, the Council’s Conservation Officer does not consider that trying to emulate 
any of the neighbouring building styles would be beneficial.  Officers consider the 
proposed extension is an acceptable design response that would not impact negatively 
on the original qualities of the listed building and would be sympathetic to its setting in 
terms of its siting, size, scale, height, alignment, materials and finishes.  We consider it 
is a sensitive proposal that makes a positive contribution to the local character of the 
area and would conserve the character of the Conservation Area. 
 

6.11 In response to concerns raised by neighbours and local heritage groups about the 
foundation design and damage to boundary walls and buildings as a result of 
excavations for foundations the applicant’s agent states the design for the foundations 
has been prepared by chartered engineers who have extensive experience in working 
with sensitive heritage assets. 
 

6.12 Details have also been provided showing the abutment of the new extension roof to the 
existing high boundary wall to demonstrate water run-off can be appropriately 
managed. 
 

6.13 Internally there are a number of proposed changes to the circulation within the building.  
The heritage statement submitted with the application provides a record of the fabric.  
The interior of the house has been significantly altered and very few features of 
architectural or historic interest such as doors or beams remain.  The proposed 
changes largely affect modern stud walls.  The interior dates from the extensive 
rebuilding and reconfiguration following the flooding in the 1890s.  The Council’s 
Conservation Officer has inspected the inside of the property.  There is little remaining 
reference to the building’s original character other than the side passage which 
provided direct access to the rear from the street frontage.  The interior is simple with 

Page 29



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

limited decorative detailing remaining and main features, including the straight stair, 
that date to the Victorian rebuilding.   
 

6.14 The proposed internal alterations would retain reference to the Victorian layout, 
including the retention of the important side passageway and the central walls that 
create the two-room wide double pile plan.  There remains some of the chimney stack 
that is present in No.12 at the partition wall in No.11 and this is proposed to remain in 
these proposals.  There is no evidence within No.11 of any fireplaces that might once 
have been served by this stack.  
 

6.15 The removal of the central stair and its replacement with a dog-leg winder stair in the 
rear cell does remove part of the primary fabric from the 1890s rebuilding.  The stair 
itself is not a remarkable example of its kind, the turned balusters are quite simple with 
tapered columns and vase shapes that attach to a wide handrail and fully boxed in 
treads.  The Conservation Officer does not consider that the loss of this stair would 
erode all the significance of this building and what it contributes to the group value of 
Nos. 9-12 Thameside (consec.). 
 

6.16 Having considered the duty to preserve those elements which contribute to the listed 
building and the conservation area’s special interest and significance, the Conservation 
Officer is satisfied that the application meets the tests of Sections 66 and 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  Officers therefore 
consider the proposals are consistent with the policy tests of paragraphs 193 and 200 
of the NPPF and policies ENV7 and ENV8 of the SOLP. 
 

6.17 Residential amenity 
SOLP Policy DES6 requires that development proposals demonstrate they will not 
result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses. 
 

6.18 The existing boundary wall along the southern boundary of the site that abuts the rear 
gardens of neighbouring properties on Friday Street is 4.81 metres tall.  At the point the 
proposed two storey rear extension adjoins the boundary wall it would be set below the 
top of the wall but it would rise to a maximum height of 5.19 metres (0.38 metres above 
the wall) at a point 2.7 - 3.4 metres from the wall. 
 

6.19 Existing outlook from the rear of properties on Friday Street is dominated by the 
existing boundary wall.  The proposed extension may be visible over the top of the wall 
from first floor windows but this will be marginal.  Being able to see the extension does 
not mean it is harmful.  The extension would not be overbearing on these properties 
and nor would it harm their outlook. 
  

6.20 In response to concerns raised by neighbours at 10 Thameside and 67-69 Friday Street 
the applicant has provided shadowing diagrams.  These illustrate that the proposal 
would not alter existing levels of shadowing to 10 Thameside and 67-69 Friday Street.  
The assessment shows the change to overshadowing of 12 Thameside would be 
negligible, being limited to a small amount of additional shadow on the roof at 9pm in 
the summer and 12pm during the winter.  The proposal would not therefore result in a 
material loss of light to neighbouring properties. 
 

6.21 At the request of officers, the extension has been reduced in scale.  A first floor element 
that was closer to the garden of 12 Thameside has been removed.  12 Thameside has 
a small courtyard garden and officers were concerned that the extension would have 
been overbearing on the garden.  The amended proposal now incorporates just the 
stair well leading to the first floor extension, which has reduced the mass close to the 
neighbour.  In the opinion of officers this has removed the harm to the neighbour and 
the proposal is acceptable.  The single storey element would be immediately adjacent 

Page 30



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

to the boundary wall with 12 Thameside.  It would be approximately 0.4 metres higher 
than the existing boundary wall.  Officers consider this limited increase in height would 
not result in the extension being overbearing on the neighbouring garden, noting that 
the structure will be predominantly glazed and will appear lightweight. 
 

6.22 The current proposal shows the closest part of the two storey extension approximately 
3.2 metres from the corner of the garden of 12 Thameside.  Whilst it is still relatively 
close, the extension is now offset from the garden and officers consider the relationship 
between the extension and the garden is acceptable and the extension would not be 
overbearing on the neighbouring garden. 
 

6.23 The proposed dormer windows on the second floor would replace existing rooflight 
windows and would not therefore introduce new levels of overlooking.  Notwithstanding 
this, any overlooking would be at an oblique angle. 
 

6.24 At the pre-application stage, officers raised the issue of potential overlooking of the 
garden of 12 Thameside from the first floor of the proposed rear extension.  The 
omission of part of the first floor extension has to some degree addressed our 
concerns.  In addition, the proposal includes vertical timber-clad fins / louvres mounted 
on the proposed first floor windows to prevent overlooking and obscure glazing to a 
height of 1.75 metres above the finished floor level on a section of the window without 
the fins.  Officers are satisfied that these measures would prevent overlooking of the 
neighbouring garden and recommend a condition to require the retention and 
maintenance of these features.  There would be no overlooking of windows of 12 
Thameside due to the relationship of the property at 90 degrees to the proposed 
extension and the distance between them. 
 

6.25 Concerns have been raised about potential for light spill from the large amount of 
glazing proposed.  Given the site’s position in an enclosed walled garden and within the 
wider context of the service yard of Thames Court, light spill would be to some degree 
limited.  The position and orientation of the extension, and its relationship to windows of 
neighbouring properties would mean light would be intercepted / shielded and would be 
unlikely to cause a nuisance to internal living areas of neighbouring properties.  The 
property is in a residential / commercial town centre location where there is existing use 
of artificial lights so in the wider context the proposal would not contribute significantly 
to light pollution. 
 

6.26 The proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of 
occupiers of neighbouring properties.  It would not be overly dominant or visually 
intrusive, it would not result in a material loss of daylight or sunlight and it would not 
result in a significant loss of privacy. 
 

6.27 Access and Parking 
The property does not currently benefit from off-street parking.  The enlarged property 
may have a slightly greater demand for parking but officers do not consider this would 
result in significant impacts on the transport network. 
 

6.28 Other material planning considerations 
The site lies within Flood Zone 3.  The proposed rear extension would be located in an 
enclosed courtyard.  The proposal would result in a greater building footprint but this 
would be over the existing courtyard garden so there would be no increased 
hardstanding.  The proposed finished floor levels of the extension would be no lower 
than existing floor levels in accordance with the Environment Agency’s Standing Advice 
for minor extensions. 
 
 

Page 31



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

6.29 Community Infrastructure Levy 
The proposed development is not CIL liable because it would result in the addition of 
less than 100 square metres. 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Planning application P20/S2809/HH 

The proposed extension would be subservient to the dwelling and is of a scale suitable 
to the size of the plot.  The proposal is an appropriate design response that would not 
harm the character of the property, the setting of nearby listed buildings or the 
conservation area.  It would not be unneighbourly and nor would it result in harm to the 
highway or exacerbate flooding.  The application is therefore recommended for 
approval. 
 

7.2 Listed Building consent application P20/S2812/LB 
The Council’s Conservation Officer supports the application and is satisfied that the 
proposal serves to better preserve those elements that illustrate the architectural and 
historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Local Plan policies ENV6, 
ENV7 and ENV8. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
8.1 That the council records that it has resolved to approve application 

P20/S2809/HH subject to the following conditions:  
 

 1 : Commencement of development within three years 
2 : Development in accordance with the approved plans 
3 : Sample / schedule of materials required (walls and roof) 
4 : Prevention of overlooking (installation and retention of fins and obscure 
glazing on first floor of two storey rear extension) 
 

8.2 That the council records that it has resolved to approve application P20/S2812/LB 
subject to the following conditions:  
 

 1 : Commencement of works within three years 
2 : Development in accordance with the approved plans 
3 : Sample / schedule of materials required (walls and roof) 
 

 

Author: Victoria Clarke 

Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422600   

 

 

 

Page 32

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 33

Agenda Item 8P20/S2809/HH and P20/S2812/LB



37.37

41.36

37.22

32.21

Garden

Wall

Garden

Wall

YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK  

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

 

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

1:100@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Existing Side and Rear

Elevations+ Photographs
AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
EXISTING SIDE AND REAR ELEVATIONS + PHOTOGRAPHS

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA/E057519

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION 1:100

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION PHOTOGRAPH

REAR ELEVATION PHOTOGRAPH

June' 20

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

Appendix 2

P
age 34

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
5



YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK  

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

 

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

1:250@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed Block Plan

AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

Dec'20

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P017519

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

B

Appendix 2

Page 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
5



Proposed Dormer

Windows

1:50@A3

Proposed Rear Elevation

and 3d View (2)

0

1

2

3

YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK  

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

 

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION AND 3D VIEW (2)

Dec' 20

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P06A7519

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

3d View

Rear Elevation (Section Through Single Storey Glass Extension)

Existing 11/12

Thameside

boundary wall.

B

Existing sash windows

will be kept at same

location but will be

replaced like to like

with double glazing

Glass roof

RWP collecting

water from main

existing roof

RWP collecting

water from main

existing roof

Glass roof to stair to

first floor

For overspill gulley

detail see drawing

TS/7519/PA2/P21

Page 36



Proposed Glass

Single Storey

to Ground Floor

Line of Rear

Garden Wall

Proposed Zinc

Cladding

Proposed Large

Glass Windows

to 1st Floor

Proposed Zinc

Roofing

Proposed Dormer

Windows

FFL=+0.15

+2.95

+3.05

0.00

+4.75

+3.65

+5.19

+4.81

1:50@A3

Proposed Rear Elevation

and 3d View (1)

0

1

2

3

YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK  

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

 

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION AND 3D VIEW (1)

Dec' 20

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P067519

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

Rear Elevation

Existing 11/12

Thameside

boundary wall.

B

Existing sash windows

will be kept at same

location but will be

replaced like to like

with double glazing

3d View

Page 37



Exisiting

Garden

Wall

MAIN

HOUSE

PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY GLASS

EXTENSION TO GROUND FLOOR

FFL=+0.15

+5.19

+2.95

+2.55

0.00

1:50@A3

Proposed Side Elevation and

3d View

0

1

2

3

YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK  

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

 

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION AND 3D VIEW

Dec' 20

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P077519

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

3d View

Side Elevation

Electrically operated, rotating vertical fins

(wood veneer on aluminium structure)

Zinc cladding

(or similar metal cladding)

Fixed vertical fins -

(or similar).

Glazed

staircase -

opaque

glass

B

Existing

Sash

Window

Existing

House

Gutter

Clear Glass

P
age 38



KITCHEN

DINING

ROOM

DRAWING

ROOM

GARDEN

BEDROOM

2

BEDROOM

3

MASTER

BEDROOM

DRESSING

ROOM

Existing

skylights

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR 1:100

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR 1:100

EXISTING LOFT FLOOR 1:100

YK Architecture
ARCHITECTURE      INTERIOR DESIGN      PLANNING

Yasemin Kirkpatrick   Chartered Architect    RIBA   ARBUK

M: 07931843263 E-mail: yasemin@ykdesign.co.uk

YK ARCHITECTURE  is the trading name of Y.K Design Ltd.  Registered in England and Wales  (No. 9427362)

scale

1:100@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

rev.

Proposed Demolitions Plan

AM

11 Thameside, Henley-On-Thames RG9 1BH
PROPOSED DEMOLITIONS PLAN

Mrs Bucknall

no.

TS/7519/PA2/P127519

EXISTING ROOF 1:100

Aug' 20

This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

Proposed Demolitions of Listed Building

Proposed Demolitions of Modern Extension ( Not Listed)

A

P
age 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
5



KITCHEN

LIVING

WC

STUDY

BIKES

ENTRANCE HALL

f
i
r
e
p
l
a
c
e

+
 
t
v

UTILITY

GARDEN

F/F

W.M.
Oven

GYM

G
L
A

S
S

 
R

O
O

F
 
A

B
O

V
E

LINE OF EXISTING

REAR WALL

BINS

Sunken Air and heat pump

enclosure location

+32.75

GF FFL

+32.90

scale

1:50@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed Ground Floor

Layout Plan
AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P027519

0

1

2

3

Dec'20

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR
LAYOUT PLAN

B

Page 40



EN-SUITE

DRESSING ROOM

BATH

ROOM

SHOWER

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

G
L

A
S

S
 
R

O
O

F

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 4

scale

1:50@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed First Floor

Layout Plan
AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P037519

0

1

2

3

Dec'20

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR
LAYOUT PLAN

B

EXISTING SASH WINDOWS WILL BE

KEPT AT SAME LOCATION BUT WILL BE

REPLACED LIKE TO LIKE WITH DOUBLE

GLAZING

Page 41



BEDROOM 4

STORAGE

EN-SUITE

Proposed

Dormer

Window

above

Proposed

Dormer

Window

above

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

R
I
C

K
 
W

A
L
L

PROPOSED ZINC ROOFING TO

SIDE EXTENSION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

L
A

S
S

 
R

O
O

F

RWP

RWP

RWP

scale

1:50@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed Second Floor

Layout Plan
AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P047519

0

1

2

3

Dec'20

PROPOSED LOFT FLOOR
LAYOUT PLAN

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH

B

Page 42



E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

R
I
C

K
 
W

A
L
L

PROPOSED ZINC ROOFING TO

SIDE EXTENSION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

L
A

S
S

 
R

O
O

F

RWP

RWP

RWP

scale

1:50@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed Roof Plan

AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P057519

0

1

2

3

Dec'20

scale client

PROPOSED
ROOF PLAN

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH

B

RWP collecting water

from main existing roof

Internal

Gutter

Replacement gutter to

main house

Internal

Gutter

Page 43



This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

scale

-@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed 3D Views (1)

AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P087519

Dec'20

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH
PROPOSED 3D VIEWS (1)

B

View 01

View 02

Page 44



This drawing is produced for the purposes of obtaining

Local Authority Approvals only. Drawing not to be

scaled for construction purposes. All dimensions and

specification notes are for guidance only. Contractor to

verify all dimensions and site conditions. All works to

be carried out in accordance with with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, codes of practice and

any printed directions issued by manufacturers or

proprietary materials and components used. (whether

specified or not) This drawing is subject to copyright

and no portion should be used without consent.

scale

-@A3

date

drawn

job

client

drawing

no. rev.

Proposed 3D Views (2)

AM

Mrs Bucknall

TS/7519/PA2/P097519

Dec'20

11 THAMESIDE,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9 1BH
PROPOSED 3D VIEWS (2)

B

View 03

View 04

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P20/S0510/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 7.2.2020 
 PARISH HENLEY-ON-THAMES 
 WARD MEMBERS Ken Arlett 

Kellie Hinton 
Stefan Gawrysiak 

 APPLICANT Mr Andrew Morgan 
 SITE Land to rear of 16 Reading Road, Henley-on-

Thames, RG9 1AG 
 PROPOSAL Erection of a three storey building to provide three 1-

bedroom flats (Daylight and Sunlight report received 
29th May 2020; amended elevation received 23rd 
June 2020, clarifying external materials to be used 
for the stair core). 

 OFFICER Simon Kitson 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This application was deferred at the 21st October 2020 Planning Committee meeting, 

in order for members to undertake a site visit.  
 

1.2 The application site (attached at Appendix A) is comprised of a redundant area of 
land to the rear of no 16 Reading Road, a historic, mid-terrace building located within 
a built-up thoroughfare through Henley town centre. The adjoining properties have 
retail frontages, with a large number of residential developments above and behind.  
The site is not within a designated area. The Henley Main Conservation Area runs 
along the properties at the opposite side of Reading Road. 
 

1.3 In 2016, planning permission was granted for the change of use of the ground floor of 
no. 16 to retail, with residential uses at the upper storeys and the erection of a 
flat-roofed second floor roof extension. No changes were proposed to the 
rear service area which is within the application site. 
 

1.4 Later in 2016, planning permission was granted for the erection of a block of 3 1-bed 
flats within the rear service yard of no. 16. The new flat-roofed building would have a 
south-east facing stepped lightwell, to allow natural light to the flats and a cladded 
stairwell to the rear, with a curved roof. This was followed in 2017 by an amended 
scheme, again for 3 x 1-bed flats joining the party wall 18-20 Reading Road.  
 

1.5 Henley Town Council raised no objection to either of the previous applications. Copies 
of the previous decisions are attached at Appendix B. 

2.0 PROPOSAL 
2.1 The previous consents expired in March 2020 after the current proposal was 

submitted. Full planning permission is sought for a re-submission of the same scheme 
approved under P17/S0193/FUL. 
 

2.2 The proposal again seeks consent for 3 residential flats with pedestrian access via a 
shared pathway to the west which also serves the existing flats at nos. 6A to 6D. The 
residences would be served by balconies within an internal stairwell to the south of 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S0510/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

the building. No parking provision is provided, and residential permit exclusions would 
apply as there is an extant Unilateral Undertaking with the County Council.  
 

2.3 The proposed site plans, elevations and floor plans are attached as Appendix C. All 
associated documents and consultation responses can be viewed on the council’s 
website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 

Henley-on-Thames Town Council – Objection 

 Recommend refusal on the grounds that the development would be 
overbearing and unneighbourly, with no parking provision and insufficient fire 
escape routes. 

 Issues raised over the adequacy of the BRE Light Survey  
 
Air Quality – No objection, subject to provision of sustainable travel packs, gas-fired 
boiler emission minimum standards and provision of cycle parking. 
 
The Henley Society (Planning) – Objection 

 This proposal would be an over-development and unneighbourly. There is also 
concern re the lack of parking and accessibility for emergency vehicles. 

 
Neighbour Objections (7) 

 The proposal is an overdevelopment of the site 

 There would be a detrimental impact upon all surrounding properties, due to the 
visibility of the upper storey from the neighbouring gardens and living 
accommodation, possible losses of privacy as a result of the stairwell and 
losses of daylight.  

 The construction would be logistically impossible and the flats would not benefit 
from much natural light 

 The proposed materials would be out-of-keeping with the character and 
appearance of the area 

 There would be parking issues as the proposal does not incorporate parking 
provision and residential permits are in short supply.  

 There are access and fire safety concerns 

 There is no space for dedicated cycle parking 
 

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
4.1 P17/S4123/NM - Approved (21/12/2017) 

Non material amendment to application ref. P16/S2571/FUL - amend south east 
elevation from facing brick to white render (Erection of 3 x 1-bed flats) 
 
P17/S0193/FUL - Approved (17/03/2017) 
Erection of 3 x 1-Bed Flats related to P16/S2571/FUL 
 
P16/S3185/NM - Approved (17/10/2016) 
Non-material amendment to application ref. P16/S0181/FUL - amend the front bay 
window from brick to white render finish, and amend the rear second floor extension 
from brick to red hanging tiles. 
 
P16/S2571/FUL - Approved (12/10/2016) 
Erection of 3 x 1-Bed Flats.  
 
P16/S2171/NM - Approved (20/07/2016) 

Page 48

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S4123/NM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S0193/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3185/NM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2571/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2171/NM


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

Non-material amendment to planning permission P16/S0181/FUL for new roof light to 
bedroom of second floor flat, amend cill height to kitchen window of second floor flat, 
amendment to retail unit shop frontage, amendments to ground floor. 
 
P16/S0181/FUL - Approved (15/03/2016) 
Rear second floor roof extension (flat roof dormer), new shop frontage and internal 
alterations. Change of use at first floor from restaurant to residential. Ground floor to 
remain as retail (revised plans received 16th March 2016, amending fenestration detail 
at second floor level) 
 
P05/E0845 - Approved (26/09/2005) 
Change of use and extension of first floor from B1 office to C3 residential use and 
development of 4 flats.  Single storey extension to provide disabled toilet.  Provision of 
parking for the flats.  (Amendment to P04/E1196). 

 
5.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
5.1 Not applicable for this application. 

 
6.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
6.1 Since the previous planning committee meeting, the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 

has been adopted. This replaces all South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 and South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies referenced in the previous report. 
 
The following policies are now most relevant to the determination of this application: 
 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP)  
 
HEN1 - The Strategy for Henley-on-Thames 
H1 - Delivering New Homes 
H3 - Housing in the towns of Henley, Thame and Wallingford 
DES1 – Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2 – Enhancing Local Character 
DES5 – Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6 – Residential Amenity 
DES10 -  Carbon Reduction 

  
6.2 Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP) Policies: 

H4 – Infill housing  
DQS1 – Local character 

  
6.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
  
6.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
6.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 

 

Page 49

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S0181/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P05/E0845


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

7.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
7.1 The planning issues that are relevant to these applications are: 

 

 The acceptability of the principle of the development 

 The impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area 

 The impact upon air quality 

 The impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers 

 Highway considerations 

 Energy efficiency 
 

7.2 Principle of development 
Policy HEN1 of the SOLP and Policy H4 of the Henley and Harpsden Joint 
Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP) both support the principle of infill and redevelopment 
schemes in the built-up limits of Henley, provided that the proposal does not conflict 
with the National Planning Policy Framework or any other Development Plan policies. 
The principle and all residual impacts were previously considered acceptable by both 
the Planning Authority and Henley Town Council. Although these consents have 
recently expired it is a pertinent fact that the proposals were assessed against similar 
Development Plan policies to those which apply now.  
 

7.3 Design and character 
The proposal would redevelop a fully enclosed yard area to the rear of 16 Reading 
Road, which does not perform any particular function in connection with any 
commercial property or provide any meaningful amenity space for a residential one. 
Although most of this space would be developed by the proposed scheme, the agent 
proposes that outdoor spaces and natural light would be provided by means of a south-
east facing light well and cascading balconies.  
 

7.4 Although the amount of private amenity space for each flat would fall well short of the 
50-100 sq.m recommended for new dwellings under Section 7 of the SODG, both this 
document and Policy DES5 of the SOLP allow a flexible approach, taking into account 
local context and the characteristics of the area. As noted within the previous delegated 
reports, the property is within a sustainable, walkable location with good access to 
parks and a range of other key facilities. On the basis that the majority of surrounding 
residential development, including the recent approvals to the rear of no.14 Reading 
Road, have similar private amenity standards, officers do not object to this aspect of the 
proposal. 
 

7.5 The scale and design are identical to the previous approval at the site. Whilst the 
overall form of the building and elements of its external finish contrast in some ways 
with the developments fronting the historic Reading Road frontage, there are a variety 
of architectural forms, flat-roofed properties and higher density apartment schemes 
within the locality, all of which make efficient use of land within this sustainable town 
centre location without causing harm to the historic character of the wider town. Officers 
remain of the view that the building, which would have no significant visibility from any 
public vantage points, would not cause material harm to the character of the area or the 
historic significance of the conservation area which lies further to the east. 
 

7.6 Whilst issues are raised regarding fire escapes and the amount of natural light provided 
for the occupants of the flats, any scheme would still need to comply with Building 
Regulations irrespective of whether planning consent is granted. Officers have been 
provided with a document from the approved building inspector for the previous 
approvals confirming that the schemes complied with all aspects of the Building 
Regulations 2010. Should there subsequently be any conflicts if planning permission is 

Page 50



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

granted, this would be a matter for the applicant to resolve. Any material changes to the 
approved scheme would require formal consent from the council and these would be 
subject to the same statutory public consultation requirements.      

 
7.7 Air quality 

The site falls within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). This was also the case 
at the time of the previous consented scheme. Officers recommend that a boiler 
emission condition is attached in line with the Air Quality Team’s recommendations. 
The cycle parking recommendation is addressed within the transport section of this 
report. 

  
7.8 Neighbouring amenity 
 The neighbour objections to the previous scheme focussed on party wall issues, 

construction access difficulties, structural impacts and the potential for unauthorised 
parking within the grounds of the adjacent property.  
 

7.9 Under the consultation for the current identical proposal, some of the same issues are 
raised again but the primary concerns relate to the impact upon neighbouring amenity. 
The occupants of the neighbouring dwellings argue that the upper storey of the building 
would be highly visible, with overbearing impacts including losses of daylight, sunlight 
and privacy.  
 

7.10 In response to the objections, the applicant commissioned a professional Daylight and 
Sunlight Report (MES Building Solutions, 13th May) which assessed the proposal 
against the 2011 Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines on Planning for 
Daylight and Sunlight.  The study found that all windows assessed at the Reading Road 
Flats 6A – 6D would continue to benefit from adequate daylight and sunlight as 
measured against the BRE criteria. It also concluded that 50% of the properties’ 
amenity areas would continue to benefit from at least 2 hours sunlight at the spring 
equinox. Whilst objections to the content of the professional report have been received, 
officers do not have evidence directly contradicting the findings. 
 

7.11 It is accepted that the recently constructed dwellings to the side of 14 Reading Road 
have two rooflights potentially affected by the proposed development. However, 
according to the permission for these (P15/S2873/FUL) both windows serve bathrooms 
rather than habitable rooms afforded protection under the guidelines. 
 

7.12 It is accepted that the proposed development would be visible from the neighbouring 
properties at 6A to 6D to varying degrees. Whilst there is an absence of demonstrable 
harm in terms of daylight and sunlight, the perceived enclosure of the neighbour’s 
amenity areas and consequent level of harm is a matter of judgement. The most 
directly affected properties were visited over the course of the application.  
 

7.13 Officers note that the stairwell serving the building would be separated from the 
neighbouring garden areas by a communal walkway and that much of the proposed 
development would be screened from view by the existing building at no. 18. Based on 
the submitted plans, an area of the proposed curved stairwell measuring at least 1.9 
sq.m would be directly visible from the patio and kitchen at Flat 6b to the south. 
However, their living room is also served by openings facing to the west from which the 
view would be largely unaffected.  
 

Page 51



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 
 
Officers recognise that the development would alter the view from no.6b and also to a 
lesser degree the view from the living accommodation and gardens at the other flats 
with openings facing towards the north-east. However, the loss of a private view is not 
in itself a material planning consideration and it is not agreed that this feature would be 
overly dominant or result in the severe level of enclosure suggested by the neighbours.  
 

7.14 Whilst it is appreciated that the building would be in close proximity to the shared site 
boundary, officers consider that the projecting curved section of roof would not be so 
visually intrusive that it would impact harmfully upon the outlook from the neighbouring 
garden areas or any windows serving primary living accommodation. The windows 
inspected were either at oblique angles relative to the proposed flats, largely obscured 
by existing features or would continue to benefit from a reasonable amount of visible 
daylight. Officers consider that these properties would continue to have a level of 
openness consistent with this type of built-up town centre location. It is accepted that 
the materials, comprising a mixture of single ply roof, metal cladding and white 
rendered flank walls, are perceived to be visually-incongruous. Though their 
appropriateness in design terms is a subjective matter, this is not directly relevant to 
neighbouring amenity considerations. 
 

7.15 With regard to privacy, the upper portions of the stairwell which would be visible from 
the neighbouring properties would be opaque in order to avoid any overlooking. The 
lower portions of the cladding would be perforated.  Officers do not consider that any 
other aspect of the development would have the potential to impact upon neighbouring 
privacy. With this measure in place, officers consider, on balance, that the proposal is 
not in conflict with the relevant parts of SOLP Policy DES6. 
 

7.16 Highway safety 
The proposal is intended to be car free and the site is within a highly sustainable town 
centre location with convenient access to a range of key services and facilities. There 
are also public transport connections easily accessible.  
 

7.17 The Local Highways Authority raised no objection to the previous applications, provided 
that the applicant entered into a unilateral undertaking (UU) with the County Council in 
order to exclude the properties from automatic eligibility for parking permits under the 
Road Traffic Order. This would prevent the dwellings from adding to on-street parking 
pressure on the street. Following the 2016 resolution to grant planning permission, the 
applicant completed a UU. Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) has confirmed that this is 
still valid today as it is attached to the land rather than a specific consent. OCC are 
content that this will continue to apply to any future development within the site and 

Page 52



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

have confirmed that no further action would be required by the applicant other than to 
provide the property addresses post construction.  
 

7.18 Whilst it has been suggested that occupants may attempt to park on private land 
belonging to other neighbouring properties, this is a private civil matter and not within 
the Council’s control.  
 

7.19 Under the previous approved applications, the absence of designated cycle parking 
was noted. Officers however concluded that the site is in walking distance of key 
services and public transport links. Cycles could be stored within the flats should the 
need arise. There have been no changes in the circumstances of the site and on this 
basis, officers do not consider that there are sufficient grounds to refuse the application 
on transport grounds. 
 

7.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.21 

Energy Efficiency 
Since the adoption of the new Local Plan, all development proposals for the erection of 
new dwellings are now required to demonstrate a higher standard of energy efficiency 
in accordance with SOLP Policy DES10. The requirement is for developments to 
achieve at least a 40% reduction in carbon emissions compared with code 2013 
Building Regulations base case.  
 
For applications registered before 1st April 2021, the Council accepts energy statements 
with supporting SAP calculations as a condition of consent rather than requiring this to 
be resolved up front. The applicant consents to the standard conditions being imposed. 
For the avoidance of doubt, these require the Council’s agreement over the energy 
efficiency measures prior to the commencement of any works on site. 
 

7.22 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
This proposal is CIL liable at a rate of £150 per square metre (index linked). 

 
8.0 CONCLUSION 
8.1 The current development proposal continues to be in broad accordance with the 

relevant development plan policies and national planning guidance. Officers consider 
that the development would not cause any significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the site or the surrounding area. The proposal is also acceptable in 
terms of the impact upon the local highway network having regard to the sustainability 
of the location. On balance, officers consider the impact upon the amenity of the 
neighbouring occupiers to be acceptable, subject to the recommended privacy 
condition. 

 
9.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 Grant Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:  

 
 1. Commencement of development within three years  

 
2.  Development to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans 

 
3. Materials to be as on plan, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
 
4. Prior to first occupation, the privacy measures shown of the approved 

plans shall be implemented and retained as such thereafter. 
 

5. Any gas fired boilers shall meet a minimum standard of <40 mgNOx/kWh 
 

Page 53



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, an 
Energy Statement demonstrating how the development will achieve at 
least a 40% reduction in carbon emissions compared with code 2013 
Building Regulations and details of how this will be monitored shall be 
submitted to the local planning authority and approved in writing. 

 
7. Prior to first occupation, all carbon reduction energy efficiency measures 

shall be implemented in accordance with the Energy Statement hereby 
approved and a Verification Report shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

 
 

 
Author: Simon Kitson 
Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 
Tel: 01235 422600 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix A

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 9
P

20/S
0510/FU

L



www.southoxon.gov.uk page 1 / 5

PLANNING

Mr Andrew Morgan
c/o lapd ltd
The Studio
Building F5 North
Culham
OX14 3EB

PLANNING PERMISSION

South Oxfordshire District Council hereby gives notice that planning permission is
GRANTED for the carrying out of the development referred to above strictly in
accordance with the description, plans and specifications contained in the application
(as varied by any amendments as referred to above) subject to the following
condition(s) : 

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: By virtue of Sections 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

That the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the details shown on the following approved plans, C166.01 and C166.02,
except as controlled or modified by conditions of this permission.

Reason: To secure the proper planning of the area in accordance with
Development Plan policies.

1.

2.

Planning Decision

Application No : P16/S2571/FUL            

Application proposal, including any amendments :
Erection of 3 x 1-Bed Flats.

Site Location : Site to the rear of 16 Reading Road HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9
1AG

P16/S2571/FUL

Page 56

SAV_NANSRI
Typewriter
Appendix B



page 2 / 5

P16/S2571/FUL

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a schedule
of all materials to be used in the external construction and finishes of the
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and
neighbouring amenity in accordance with Policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire
Core Strategy 2027 and Policies G2, H4 and D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local
Plan 2011.

The above permission/consent may contain pre-conditions, which require
specific matters to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a
specified stage in the development occurs.  This means that a lawful
commencement of the approved development/works cannot be made until the
particular requirements of the pre-condition(s) have been met.

This approval is specific to the details of the development as shown on the
approved plans and other associated documentation.  Unless otherwise agreed
by the Council any departure from the approved plans will constitute
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  As such
the Council must be advised in writing of any proposed variations from the
approved plans and other associated documentation at the earliest stage
possible.  A decision will then be made as to whether the changes can be dealt
with as a minor revision to the approved details or whether a revised application
is required.

This permission refers only to that required under the Town and Country Planning
Acts and does not include any consent or approval under any other enactment,
byelaw, order or regulation.

3.

NB:

NB:

Page 57



page 3 / 5

P16/S2571/FUL

Head of Planning
12th October 2016

Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Design
The Overall Strategy
Principles of good design
Waste Management
Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
Outdoor amenity area
Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
Protect district from adverse development
Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

CS1
CSQ3
CSS1
D1
D10
D2
D3
D4
G2
H4
T1
T2

Key Policies 
1

Note : The full wording of the above policies are available on our website or in the
local plan documents, at our offices.

Page 58



page 4 / 5

P16/S2571/FUL

STATUTORY INFORMATIVE

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse
permission for the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then
you can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment under sections 78 and
79 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal, then you must do so within six months of the date of this
notice, using a form which you can get from :

The Planning Inspectorate
Customer Support Unit
Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Telephone : 0303 444 5000
www.planningportal.gov.uk
email: enquiries@pins.gsi.gov.uk.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but
he will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special
circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed
development or could not have granted it without the conditions it imposed, having
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order and
to any directions given under the order.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely
because the local planning authority based its decision on a direction given by him.

Purchase Notice

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment
refuses permission to develop land or grants its subject to conditions, the owner may
claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing
state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council

Page 59



page 5 / 5

P16/S2571/FUL

(District Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London)
in whose area the land is situated.  This notice will require the Council to purchase
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI, Chapter 1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Compensation

In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning
authority if permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of
State on appeal or on reference of the application to him.

These circumstances are set out in sections 114 and related provisions of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Planning Portal contains a wide range of helpful planning-related guidance and
services. You may wish to view their website (www.planningportal.gov.uk). 

Page 60



www.southoxon.gov.uk page 1 / 5

PLANNING

Mr Andrew Morgan
c/o lapd ltd
The Studio
Building F5 North
Culham
OX14 3EB

PLANNING PERMISSION

South Oxfordshire District Council hereby gives notice that planning permission is
GRANTED for the carrying out of the development referred to above strictly in
accordance with the description, plans and specifications contained in the application
(as varied by any amendments as referred to above) subject to the following
condition(s) : 

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: By virtue of Sections 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

That the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the details shown on the following approved plans, C166.10 and C166.12 revA,
except as controlled or modified by conditions of this permission.

Reason: To secure the proper planning of the area in accordance with
Development Plan policies.

1.

2.

Planning Decision

Application No : P17/S0193/FUL            

Application proposal, including any amendments :
Erection of 3 x 1-Bed Flats

Site Location : Site to the rear of 16 Reading Road HENLEY-ON-THAMES RG9
1AG

P17/S0193/FUL

Page 61



page 2 / 5

P17/S0193/FUL

The exterior of the development hereby permitted shall only be constructed in
the materials specified on the plans hereby approved or in materials which shall
previously have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development in
accordance with Policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 and
Policies G2 and D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

The above permission/consent may contain pre-conditions, which require
specific matters to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a
specified stage in the development occurs.  This means that a lawful
commencement of the approved development/works cannot be made until the
particular requirements of the pre-condition(s) have been met.

This approval is specific to the details of the development as shown on the
approved plans and other associated documentation.  Unless otherwise agreed
by the Council any departure from the approved plans will constitute
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  As such
the Council must be advised in writing of any proposed variations from the
approved plans and other associated documentation at the earliest stage
possible.  A decision will then be made as to whether the changes can be dealt
with as a minor revision to the approved details or whether a revised application
is required.

This permission refers only to that required under the Town and Country Planning
Acts and does not include any consent or approval under any other enactment,
byelaw, order or regulation.

3.

NB:

NB:

The application proposal accords with the relevant development plan policies and
national planning policy.  The development would not cause any significant harm to
the character and appearance of the site, surrounding area or adversely affect the
amenity of either existing neighbouring occupiers or the future occupiers. The
proposal is also acceptable in terms of the impact upon the local highway network.

Reason for Decision 

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework the Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals. The Planning Service works with applicants/agents in a positive and
proactive manner by offering a pre-application advice service and by advising
applicants/agents of issues that arise during the processing of their application and
where possible suggesting solutions to problems.

Note : A more detailed explanation is available in the officer's report, available in the
application case file.

Page 62



page 3 / 5

P17/S0193/FUL

Head of Planning
17th March 2017

Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Design
The Overall Strategy
Principles of good design
Waste Management
Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
Outdoor amenity area
Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
Protect district from adverse development
Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

CS1
CSQ3
CSS1
D1
D10
D2
D3
D4
G2
H4
T1
T2

Key Policies 
1

Note : The full wording of the above policies are available on our website or in the
local plan documents, at our offices.

Page 63



page 4 / 5

P17/S0193/FUL

STATUTORY INFORMATIVE

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse
permission for the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then
you can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment under sections 78 and
79 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal, then you must do so within six months of the date of this
notice, using a form which you can get from :

The Planning Inspectorate
Customer Support Unit
Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Telephone : 0303 444 5000
www.planningportal.gov.uk
email: enquiries@pins.gsi.gov.uk.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but
he will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special
circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed
development or could not have granted it without the conditions it imposed, having
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order and
to any directions given under the order.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely
because the local planning authority based its decision on a direction given by him.

Purchase Notice

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment
refuses permission to develop land or grants its subject to conditions, the owner may
claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing
state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council

Page 64



page 5 / 5

P17/S0193/FUL

(District Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London)
in whose area the land is situated.  This notice will require the Council to purchase
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI, Chapter 1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Compensation

In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning
authority if permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of
State on appeal or on reference of the application to him.

These circumstances are set out in sections 114 and related provisions of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Planning Portal contains a wide range of helpful planning-related guidance and
services. You may wish to view their website (www.planningportal.gov.uk). 

Page 65



0 1 2 3 4 5

scale bar (metre)

scale bar (metre)

0 5 10 15 20 25

2

0

b

34.6m

9

1

5

1

8

Bank

1

3

2

0

a

3

2

4

1

0

2

0

5

2

9

6

d

1

1

1

 

t

o

 

1

0

6

a

 

t

o

4

1

6

8

3

4

PO

3

0

1

4

5

1

2

P

H

2

2

1

5

5

2

8

9

c

B

R

I

T

A

N

N

I

A

 

P

L

A

C

E

3

1

2

6

1

7

2

3

6

.

0

m

7

3

0

182450

4
7
6
1
0
0

4
7
6
1
5
0

R

E

A

D

I

N

G

 

R

O

A

D

G

R

E

Y

S

 

R

O

A

D

F

R

I
D

A

Y

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

4
2

.
5

4
R

i
d

g
e

 
l
e

v
e

l

4
2
.
1
0

E
a

v
e

s
 
l
e

v
e

l

4
2

.
9

1

E
a

v
e

s
 
l
e

v
e

l

Roof level

44.35Ridge level

44.09Ridge level

43.76Ridge level

36.46

36.39

36.28
36.36

36.43

4
4

.
4

4

R
i
d

g
e

 
l
e

v
e

l

Eaves level

42.50

42.34

E
d

g
e

 
o

f
 
r
o

o
f

Roof level

42.09

E
d

g
e

 
o

f
 
r
o

o
f

Edge of roof

First floor building overhang - soffit level
39.42

36.45

Flat 1

Hall

Bedroom

Living

Kitchen

Store

No.14

Ground floor and site plan

No.18

Wardrobe

Bathroom

Dining

44.21Ridge level

43.76Ridge level

44.42Eaves level

RWP

R
W

P

35.85

No.14

CL 35.77

IC

Duct

Duct

Duct

Tiles

[35.80]

35.77

RWP

RWP

& fuse boxes

Mains switch

E
d
g
e
 
o
f
 
r
o
o
f

Roof level

42.34

E
d
g
e
 
o
f
 
r
o
o
f

No.18

R
E

T
A

I
L

A
C

C
E

S
S

 
T

O
 
F

L
A

T
S

RETAIL

store
disabled wc

svp

new door

new

window

new door

& glazed

screen

Flat 1

Outdoor Patio

(light well)

Bin

Store

F/F

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

h
i
g
h
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

+0.150

N
e
w

 
m

e
t
a
l
 
g
a
t
e

recycling

240lt

recycling

240lt

180lt

Refuse

180lt

Refuse

food

23lt

Party Structure Party Structure Party StructureParty Structure

P
a
r
t
y
 
S

t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e

no. 6a - 6b Reading Road

new building to the rear

 of no. 14 reading Road

Datum 34.00m Datum 34.00m

SVP

Brick

Door Door Door

Datum 34.00m

SVP

6a to 6d Reading Road

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

single ply flat roof with roof lights

Cascading light well serving proposed flats

2m high

privacy screen

First Floor Level +2.775

Second Floor Level +5.400

Ground Floor Level +0.150

Light weight cladding to stair core

no. 16 Reading Road Ridge level

No. 16 Reading Road

uPVC double glazed screensWhite render to

South East elevation wall

White render to

South East elevation wall

single ply finish to curved roof

Perforated metal cladding, as

'Proteous SC engineered panel

system in perforated hook

panel' or similar.

Second floor cladding, to be

un-perforated metal cladding to

prevent any issues with

overlooking and to respect

neighbouring privacy (cladding

to be textured to match

perforation size below)

Datum 34.00m Datum 34.00m

Brick

Brick

Concrete

Rendered

UPVC Fascia

Vent

Air

bricks

Flashing

Pipe

Drain

Drain

Close-board

fence

Close-board

fence

P
o
s
t

P
o
s
t

Tiled roof

Canopy

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

6a to 6d Reading Road

single ply flat roof with roof lights brick face

First Floor Level +2.775

Second Floor Level +5.400

Ground Floor Level +0.150

no. 16 Reading Road Ridge level

single ply finish

to curved roof

Perforated metal cladding, as

'Proteous SC engineered panel

system in perforated hook

panel' or similar.

Second floor cladding, to be

un-perforated metal cladding to

prevent any issues with

overlooking and to respect

neighbouring privacy (cladding

to be textured to match

perforation size below)

4
2
.
5
4

R
i
d
g
e
 
l
e
v
e
l

4
0
.
5
6

E
a
v
e
s
 
l
e
v
e
l

4
2
.
1
0

E
a
v
e
s
 
l
e
v
e
l

4
2
.
9
1

E
a
v
e
s
 
l
e
v
e
l

Roof level

3
9
.
6
8

36.56

Eaves level

42.50

42.34

R
o
o
f
 
l
e
v
e
l

Edge of roof

First floor building overhang - soffit level

39.42

Flat 2

Hall

Bedroom

Living

Kitchen

W
a

r
d

r
o

b
e

Bathroom

Dining

R
W

P

Flat 2

Balcony

Lobby

Flat roof

Vent

Vent

RWP

38.49

RWP

bed 1

wrb

svp

en-suite

Store

Void

F/F

(light well)

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

+2.775

Party Structure Party StructureParty Structure

no. 6a - 6b Reading Road

new building to the rear

 of no. 14 reading Road

4
2

.
5

4
R

i
d

g
e

 
l
e

v
e

l

4
0

.
5

6
E

a
v
e

s
 
l
e

v
e

l

Building under construction

4
2
.
1
0

E
a
v
e
s
 
l
e
v
e
l

Roof level

3
9
.
6
8

Eaves level

42.50

42.34

R
o
o
f
 
l
e
v
e
l

Edge of roof

39.42

43.67

Ridge level

Flat 3

Hall

Living

Dining

Ridge level

44.42Eaves level

R
W

P

Lobby

Ensuite

External wall line at first floor

Tiled face of overhang at first floor of No.18

bed 1

wrb

svp

new

window

window

new external

wall built up on

top of existing

F/F

Kitchen

Store

2m high fence

void

(light well)

Approved Scheme

Planning Approval NO. P16/S0181/FUL

Flat 3

Balcony

RL

RLRL

RL

RL RL

+5.400

no. 6a - 6b Reading Road

new building to the rear

 of no. 14 reading Road

0 1 2 3 4 5

scale bar (metre)

Datum 34.00m

no. 6a - 6b Reading Road new building to the rear

 of no. 14 reading Road

brick face

uPVC double glazed

high level

obscured window

2m high

privacy screen

single ply to flat roof

First Floor Level +2.775

Second Floor Level +5.400

Ground Floor Level +0.150

white render to

lightwell walls

Copyright: lapd ltd

All dimensions and levels to be
checked on site and any

discrepancies to be reported to the
architect before construction.

Written dimensions to be taken in
preference to scaled dimensions.

Site & proposed ground floor plan - 1:100

1 Preparation & Brief

2 Concept Design

3 Developed Design

4 Technical Design

5 Construction

6 Handover REVISION

as labelled

Rear to

16 Reading Road

Henley on Thames

RG9 1AG

Andrew Morgan

building f5 north
culham science centre
abingdon
oxford  ox14 3db

telephone  01865  407722
fax   01865  407200
enquiry@lapdarchitects.co.uk
www.lapdarchitects.co.uk

f You
Tube

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

DRAWING NO.

SCALE

DATE
Proposed

3no. 1Bed Flats Scheme

C166.12D

June 2020

(A1)

block plan - 1:500

South East elevation- 1:100

North West Elevation - 1:100

Proposed first floor plan - 1:100 Proposed second floor plan - 1:100

North East Elevation - 1:100

C

A 09.02.17 Windows/Doors amended to uPVC

B 20.11.17 White render to South East

elevation and lightwell walls

C 06.02.20 Planning expires in March '20 -

resubmission drawings

D 23.06.20 Amends to stair core cladding

Appendix C

P
age 66



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P20/S1991/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 26.6.2020 
 PARISH BINFIELD HEATH 
 WARD MEMBERS Leigh Rawlins & David Bartholomew 
 APPLICANT The Phillimore Successors Settlement 
 SITE Land next to Oak House Cottage, Track Leading to Box 

Cottage Common Lane, Binfield Heath, RG9 4JY 
 PROPOSAL Proposed new 4 bedroom residential dwelling, built within 

the garden of Oak house Cottage. New single storey, 
single car, oak frame car port (As amended by plans 14 
October 2020 to reduce width of property and reduce 
glazing along south elevation) (As amended by plans 
received 2 March 2021 to move property further away 
from trees marginally) (As supported by Arboricultural 
Information received 2021-03-02) (As amplified by 
information received 2021-05-19). 

 OFFICER Marc Pullen 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application was deferred at the 1st September 2021 Planning Committee 

meeting, in order for members to undertake a site visit.  
 

1.2 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted.  This report explains how 
officers have reached this conclusion.  
 

1.3 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a new detached 
dwelling with detached garage.  This application is referred to planning committee as 
the recommendation of the planning officer, to grant planning permission, conflicts 
with the views of the parish council.   
 

1.4 The application site, which is shown at Appendix A, is situated in Binfield Heath, 
accessed off the existing track which runs westward off Common Lane.  The site lies 
in the Chilterns AONB.  The current plans are included at Appendix B. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Binfield Heath Parish Council – Object 

 The site is a wide gap between two homes and not a small gap in a row of 
housing.  

 Any additional dwelling here would diminish the spacious, rural character of this 
particularly tranquil, attractive corner of the village – also harming the Chilterns 
AONB.  

 The proposed building is much larger and higher and would overshadow and 
dominate Oak House Cottage, to its detriment. Windows of the new house 
would face directly into Gosbrook Cottage at first floor level. 

 The track leading to the site is narrow, private, potholed and partly unmade. It is 
very difficult to turn even a family-sized car at the end, past Oak House Cottage. 
There are no passing places. Occasionally, large vehicles need access and 
have to back up along the track, causing a risk at the junction with Common 
Lane. 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S1991/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) – No objection 

 Subject to condition requiring detailed tree protection information being 
submitted and agreed.  This condition is required to ensure the satisfactory 
protection of retained trees and necessary information around the foundation of 
the car port and details of tree pruning and the location of utilities.   

 
Countryside Officer (South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) – No objection 

 Subject to condition requiring the submission and agreement of a biodiversity 
mitigation and enhancement strategy; proposing biodiversity enhancements and 
means of minimising potential adverse impacts on biodiversity.  

 It is requested that the hedgerow along the front of the site is retained if at all 
possible. This will have visual and biodiversity benefits to the scheme 

 
Drainage - (South and Vale) – No objections 

 Subject to conditions requiring the submission and agreement of full foul 
drainage and surface water drainage 

 The following notes, coupled with the hydraulic calculations will inform any 
forthcoming application to discharge any conditions:  

- The surface water and foul water drainage schemes must be separate from 
one another. 
- EA consent for the foul water drainage scheme in writing must be provided. 
- A robust maintenance strategy is submitted for the surface water drainage. 

 
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objection 

 Subject to conditions which require the retention of parking on site.  

 The proposed development has demonstrated parking provision in accordance 
with standards 

 The provision of a third home along this lane would not, in the Highway 
Authority’s opinion, significantly increase the risk to highway safety to warrant a 
refusal   

 With regards to construction traffic, a number of informatives have been 
recommended so as to mitigate the impact construction vehicles have on the 
highway network 

 Furthermore, I would expect the proposed development to generate between 6 
to 8 movements per day, given the characteristics and geometry of the 
carriageway in this location, it is considered vehicular speeds and traffic are low, 
the Highway Authority do not anticipate this will result in severe harm to 
Highway Safety.  

 The proposal is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on the highway 
network 

 
SGN Plant Protection Team –  

 General guidance on avoiding electricity and gas pipelines 
 
South Oxfordshire District of CPRE – Object 

 The Committee of South Oxfordshire District of CPRE believes that this 
application is contrary to Policy CSR1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy.  

 The site cannot be described as a small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage 
(the gap between the neighbouring properties is 70 metres) nor is it closely 
surrounded by buildings 

 In addition, the proposed new dwelling would have a negative visual impact on 
the rural character of this part of Binfield Heath village which lies within the 
Chilterns AONB 

Page 68



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

 If permission is granted, we are concerned that the new dwelling will cause light 
spillage into the surrounding countryside of the AONB, especially from the full 
height glazing to the south elevation – Strategic Objective DO2 and Policy DP8 
of the Chilterns AONB Management Plan 2019-2024 should be considered 
here. 

 
Neighbour - (6) 

 Impact on privacy and enjoyment of neighbours – windows that look directly 
towards neighbours and blocking sunlight 

 Narrow lane would not allow access for larger construction vehicles and delivery 
vehicles 

 New dwelling would bring about an increase in traffic, particularly during the 
process of construction 

 The design of the dwelling would be large and not in keeping with the cottages 
down this lane – the large red brickwork would dominate the landscape in the 
countryside  

 The site is away from the main village and its facilities including shop and PO 
and bus service – roughly half a mile – it is likely that occupants will need a car 
to access facilities as no safe footpath or street lighting 

 The site is not infill, not a small gap 

 Access into the site but puncturing a hole in the hedgerow would be adverse to 
the character of the area 

 The development would set a precedent  

 The existing hedgerow and trees need to be protected, preserved and 
maintained  

 The site contains wildflowers and ecology – pollinated by bees and other 
insects; this will be affected by the construction process 

 The land is known to flood and water collects on neighbouring property  

 Concerns regarding the use of external lighting and the effect this might have on 
the AONB 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P19/S1888/PEM - Advice provided (31/07/2019) 

Erection of one residential dwelling 
 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The site is within a ‘sensitive area’ for the purposes of the EIA regulations 2017 but 

the scale and nature of the proposed development does not require an Environmental 
Statement.   

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV2  -  Biodiversity - Designated sites, Priority Habitats and Species 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
EP3  -  Waste collection and Recycling 
H1  -  Delivering New Homes 
H8  -  Housing in the Smaller Villages 

Page 69

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S1888/PEM


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

H16  -  Backland and Infill Development and Redevelopment  
INF4  -  Water Resources 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
 No made Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
 

5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
 

5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
  Human Rights Act 1998 - The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have 

been taken into account in the processing of the application and the preparation 
of this report.  

 Equality Act 2010 - In determining this planning application the Council has 
regard to its equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010. 

 Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. 

 Chilterns Management Plan (2019-2024) 

 Chilterns Building Design Guide 
 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 Principle of development 

 Impact on character and appearance of site and surroundings  

 Impact on neighbours 

 Access and Parking 

 Trees and Ecology 

 Other material planning considerations 

 Other matters 
 

 Principle of development  
 

6.2 The site lies in a gap between Gosbrook Cottage and Oak House Cottage along a 
small track that is accessed off Common Lane.  Binfield Heath is made up of two main 
parts; north where the Bottle and Glass Inn is located with linear housing along 
Harpsden Road and Common Lane and the southern part which is the main centre of 
the village of Binfield Heath at the convergence of Shiplake Row, Arch Hill and 
Dunsden Way, where there is a shop/post office.  There is a concentration of built 
development to the north of the road junction, between Kiln Lane and Heathfield 
Avenue and including dwellings on Heathfield Close, but the village is otherwise 
dispersed; there is, for instance, significant built development on the north side of 
Gravel Road to the west of its junction with Dunsden Way, to the south of the village 
centre and north-west of the centre of the village where the Bottle and Glass Inn is 
situated.  The application site lies within the north-western aspect in an area of loose 
knit housing located around and near to Common Lane.   
 

6.3 In Binfield Heath the principle of new residential development is governed by Policies 
H8 and H16 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP).  Policy H8 advocates that 
new housing within the ‘Smaller Villages’ will be supported through Neighbourhood 
Plans or in accordance with Policy H16.  Policy H16 allows for new dwellings on infill 

Page 70



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

sites and the redevelopment of previously developed land or buildings.  Infill is defined 
as the filling of a small gap in an otherwise continuous built-up frontage or on other 
sites within settlements where the site is closely surrounded by buildings.  Policy H16 
does not specify what size sites need to be to be considered as infill but does state that 
the scale of infill should be appropriate to its location.  
 

6.4 In officer’s view the proposed development would be situated on a site that would fill a 
gap between two existing dwellings, in a similar density and scale as the properties that 
it will lie between.  The dwelling would be read alongside both neighbouring Gosbrook 
Cottage and Oak House Cottage and appear as a continuous and linear form of 
development.  The application site would be neighboured to either side by dwellings 
and to the north by the garden area of Gosbrook House which includes their tennis 
court.  In addition to contributing to a built-up frontage this site would also be closely 
surrounded by buildings and other dwellings.  As such, officers consider that this site 
appropriately meets the definition of infill and that one property on this site would be an 
appropriate scale of development in this location.   
 

6.5 Binfield Heath is a relatively dispersed settlement, made up of two main parts.  The 
proposed new dwelling would be within walking and cycling distance to the facilities 
available to residents in Binfield Heath; including The Bottle and Glass Inn, bus stops 
and the post office and shops.  In officer’s view, the location of the new dwelling would 
enable the new occupants to access the existing facilities within the village.   
 

 Impact on character and appearance of area and surroundings  
 

6.6 The council’s policies and guidance seek to ensure that all new development is 
designed to be of a high-quality.  Development must use land efficiently, take into 
account landform, layout, building orientation, massing and landscaping, respect the 
local context working with and complementing the scale, height, density, grain, 
massing, type and details of the surrounding area.  All development must be designed 
to reflect the positive features that makes up the character of the local area; both 
physically and visually enhancing and complementing the surroundings.   
 

6.7 The South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG) advises on the above but also suggests 
that development should be of a scale that is sensitive to its context, be visually 
interesting by using attractive detailing and high-quality materials.  The National Design 
Guide states that well-designed new places will be influenced by an appreciation and 
understanding of the local vernacular of the area, including existing built form and 
landscaping.   
 

6.8 The site lies within the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  
Paragraph 176 of the NPPF confirms that great weight should be given to conserving 
and enhancing the character and qualities of the AONB which have the highest status 
of protection.  This reinforces the statutory duty placed on the council under S85 of the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000.  An over-riding principle of the NPPF is that 
any development within the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty should 
conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the AONB and in so doing not result in 
harm to the special qualities of the AONB.  
 

6.9 The site lies within the Chilterns Plateau with Valleys Landscape Character Area (LCA) 
as documented in the Landscape Character Assessment for the Local Plan 2033.  The 
key characteristics of the Chilterns Plateau with Valleys include sparsely settled small 
villages and hamlets, narrow lanes and tall hedgerows, heavily wooded landscape and 
Ancient Woodland.  The settlement patterns consist of small hamlets and farms 
scattered amongst extensive woods and commons.  Settlements have grown to 

Page 71



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

become loose and linear in form with many associated with a village green.  Traditional 
building materials are typical of the Chilterns as a whole with a predominance of red 
brick, together with silver-grey flint.  Plain tiles were the rule on the larger roofs, with 
thatch on cottages with some slate introduced in Victorian times.  Within the Chilterns 
Plateau with Valleys LCA the application site lies in a wooded dip slope landscape type.  
These areas are heavily wooded with a strong structure of woodland which can often 
create an intimate and enclosed character with a distinctive pattern of winding rural 
roads, irregular field boundaries and scattered rural settlements.    
 

6.10 The site is open in appearance and benefits from a strong landscape backdrop as a 
result of large trees and vegetation.  To the front of the site is a tall hedgerow which 
emphasises the rural appearance of the site and shelters the site from wider view.  
These are important features that would be typical to the LCA.  Through glimpsed views 
when travelling along Common Lane it is clear that built form exists down this lane and 
Gosbrook Cottage occupies a prominent position along the lane.  The development of 
the site for one detached property would read alongside Gosbrook Cottage and tie the 
built-up form together along this lane demonstrating a clear linear and loose knit row of 
housing.  In officers view this would be in keeping with the existing dispersed pattern of 
housing in this area.  
 

6.11 The proposed dwelling will be approximately 7.6 metres in height.  It is accepted that 
the dwelling will appear above the hedgerow to the front with the first floor likely to be 
exposed above.  This is not considered materially harmful given the presence of nearby 
Gosbrook Cottage and Oak House Cottage and the level of visibility will also be offset 
by the proposed dwelling being set back from the hedgerow further into the site.  The 
property does not appear overly long and the massing of the property is broken up by 
the projecting gables and lower central ridge.  This would be in accordance with the 
advice set out within the Chilterns Building Design Guide (CBDG) which advises that 
new houses should have a simple form and a pitched roof with a central ridge.   
 

6.12 The backdrop to the site makes a positive contribution to the wider area and the 
hedgerow to the front also contributes positively.  The properties in this area are well 
spaced which give the area its spacious and open character.  In officer’s view, despite 
the presence of the dwelling the landscape backdrop would still be evident and the 
hedgerow to the front would be retained.  These trees would not be harmed by the 
proposed development and their contribution to the local area would be preserved.  The 
dwelling would maintain noticeable visual gaps between Gosbrook Cottage and Oak 
House Cottage maintaining the spacious character of the area.  The intimate and 
enclosed nature of the site would remain as well as those of the neighbouring 
properties.  The application suggests the use of red brickwork and clay roofing tiles, 
which would be in keeping with the area and vernacular of the Chilterns Plateau with 
Valleys LCA and the form and massing of the property would be a typical form in the 
Chilterns AONB.   
 

6.13 In officer’s view the proposed development would introduce a new dwelling, in a 
sizeable plot appropriate to its setting which contributes to the loose knit and linear 
pattern of built form in this area, designed in an appropriate way to respond to the 
vernacular of the area and the Chilterns AONB and conserves the important landscape 
features on the site surrounding the site that positively contribute to the wider 
landscape character of the area.  As such, officers are satisfied that the development 
would be acceptable having regard to the character and appearance of the site and the 
surrounding area.   
 
 
 

Page 72



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

 Impact on neighbours 
 

6.14 
 

Policy DES6 (SOLP) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not result in 
significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses.  Factors to consider 
include loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion, noise or 
vibration, smell, dust, heat, odour, gases or other emissions, pollution, contamination 
and external lighting.   
 

6.15 Concerns have been raised with regards to the proposed dwelling having an adverse 
impact upon the amenity of neighbours who live nearby.  The proposed dwelling would 
be sited some 50 metres away from the closest wall of neighbouring Gosbrook Cottage 
and approximately 35 metres away from the shared boundary to Gosbrook Cottage.  
The proposed dwelling would be approximately 25 metres from the closest wall of 
neighbouring Oak House Cottage and 10 metres from the shared boundary to Oak 
House Cottage.  Officers are satisfied that the distances involved provide sufficient 
separation between the proposed new dwelling and the existing properties along this 
track.   
 

6.16 A distance of at least 35 metres to the boundary to Gosbrook Cottage would avoid any 
significant adverse impacts upon the amenity of these neighbours – windows would be 
set far away from this neighbour’s windows and these neighbours would be able to use 
and enjoy their private garden area without any significant adverse overlooking, loss of 
light, or loss of outlook.  The principal garden area for Oak House Cottage lies west to 
the property, further away from the proposed new dwelling.  The new dwelling would 
not result in any overbearing impact upon the neighbours at Oak House Cottage and/or 
their private garden area.  The neighbour to the north, Gosbrook House, has a tennis 
court north of where the proposed new dwelling would be sited.  This area of Gosbrook 
House is detached and away from the main dwelling and is an ancillary part of their 
garden that is not closely associated with the main dwelling.  Officers are satisfied that 
the proposed dwelling would not result in any significant adverse impact on the amenity 
of those living at Gosbrook House.   
 

6.17 The advice of the South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG):  

 
 

Page 73



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

6.18 In officer’s view the proposed new dwelling would not result in any significant adverse 
impact on the amenity of neighbours.   
 

 Access and Parking 
 

6.19 The proposed dwelling would be accessed off the existing track, served by a sizeable 
parking and turning area and detached garage.  The local highway authority has raised 
no objection to the proposed development.  It is noted a number of concerns have been 
raised with regards to construction traffic and delivery vehicles.  It must be noted that 
delivery vehicles would have been accessing the two existing dwellings and the 
provision of a third is not considered, in my opinion, to significantly increase the risk to 
Highway Safety to warrant a recommendation for refusal.  With regards to construction 
traffic, a number of informatives have been recommended so as to mitigate the impact 
construction vehicles have on the Highway network – these include avoiding any 
vehicles being parked which block the highway and to avoid any mud being carried 
onto the public highway.  Details of these informatives are further elaborated below.   
 

6.20 The local highways authority would expect the proposed development to generate 
between 6 to 8 movements per day.  Given the characteristics and geometry of the 
carriageway in this location, it is considered vehicular speeds and traffic are low and as 
such it is not anticipated that the additional vehicular movements would result in harm 
to highway safety.  The local highways authority concludes that the proposal is unlikely 
to have any significant adverse impact on the highway network and as such has no 
objection to the proposed development subject to conditions and informatives.   
 

 Impact on trees  
 

6.21 The council’s forestry officer has assessed the proposed development and the 
applicant has worked positively with the council to respond to the concerns of the 
forestry officer by providing the necessary information required to assess the impact 
upon trees.  Following the submission of all relevant information the council’s forestry 
officer does not object to the grant of planning permission, subject to suitably worded 
conditions which require the satisfactory protection of all retained trees on site.   
 

 Impact on ecology 
 

6.22 The council’s countryside officer has assessed the proposed development with regards 
to the impact on ecology.  The proposed development site comprises of the side 
amenity/garden area of Oak House Cottage.  There are no known ecological 
constraints on the site.  The countryside officer supports the retention and protection of 
the mature trees around the site.  The loss of amenity grassland is not considered to be 
a constraint to the development, however, it will have an overall adverse impact on the 
biodiversity of the site.  However, should planning permission be recommended, the 
countryside officer is satisfied that a suitably worded condition can be imposed to 
ensure that the construction process minimises any potential adverse impacts on 
biodiversity on site and requires the submission of a scheme to enhance biodiversity on 
the site.  The countryside officer also requests that a condition is imposed which 
requires the agreement of any external lighting.   
 

 Drainage and flooding  
 

6.23 The council’s drainage engineer does not object to the proposed development, subject 
to two conditions which require the submission and agreement of a full surface water 
drainage scheme and a full foul water drainage scheme.  Confirmation was sought 
during the consideration of the application with regards to percolation testing and 

Page 74



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

infiltration of the site.  The council’s drainage engineer is satisfied that the 
abovementioned conditions would be appropriate and address any outstanding 
matters.   
 

 Other material considerations  
 

6.24 Energy Reduction - In accordance with Policy DES10 (SOLP) all new build dwellings 
should achieve at least a 40% reduction in carbon emissions compared with a code 
2013 Building Regulations complaint base case.  This can be achieved with a suitably 
worded condition which will require the submission of an Energy Statement.   
 

6.25 Light spillage – Officers acknowledge that the new dwelling would have large portions 
of glazing along the north and southern elevations and to avoid any undue light spillage 
a condition can be imposed which require the submission of details of the specification 
of the glass coating of the external glazing to prevent illumination and light spill to a 
maximum visible light transmission of 70%.   
 

 Other matters 
 

6.26 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - The council’s Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) charging schedule applies to all relevant development proposals.  CIL is a 
planning charge that local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to 
support the development of their area and is primarily calculated on the increase in 
footprint created as a result of the development or net gain of residential use on site.  
This development would be liable to pay toward CIL and will be charged based on the 
internal floor space provided.   
 

6.27 Pre-commencement conditions - The suggested conditions have already been 
discussed above.  However, in accordance with The Town and Country Planning (Pre-
commencement Conditions) Regulations 2018, Section 100ZA (6) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990(a) the Council is required to confirm agreement to all pre-
commencement conditions.  These have been agreed by the applicant/agent in writing 
in accordance with the requirements of this legislation.   

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Officers consider that planning permission should be granted.  The proposed 

development would be acceptable in principle and subject to the suggested planning 
conditions, the proposed development would not result in any adverse impacts upon 
the character and appearance of the area, the landscape and scenic beauty of the 
Chilterns AONB, the amenity of neighbours, the protection and retention of important 
landscape features and ecology and would not harm the safety of the highway network.   

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 Planning Permission.  

 
 1  -  Development to commence within three years of the date of permission  

2  -  Development to be implemented in accordance with approved plans  
3  -  Schedule of all materials to be used in the external construction of the  
       development to be agreed  
4  -  Parking & Manoeuvring Areas retained as shown on plan 
5  -  Details of landscaping (incl hardsurfacing and boundary treatment) to be  
       submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA  
6  -  Tree Protection details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA 
7  -  Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy to be submitted to and  
       approved in writing by the LPA 

Page 75



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

  

8  -  A schedule of all external lighting to be to be submitted to and approved in  
       writing by the LPA 
9  -  Surface water drainage details to be submitted to and approved in writing by  
       the LPA 
10 - Foul drainage details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA 
11 - Energy Statement – report to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
       LPA 
12 - Glass coating for external glazing to be submitted to and approved in  
       writing by the LPA 
 
Highway informative: 
- It is an offence under Section 151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving the 
development site to carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities should therefore be 
provided and used on the development site for cleaning the wheels of vehicles before 
they leave the site. 
- No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development site shall be 
parked on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction. Any such obstruction is an 
offence under Section 137 of the Highways Act 1980. 

 

 

 

Author: Marc Pullen 

Email:   Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Tel:       01235 422600 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix A

Page 77

Agenda Item 10P20/S1991/FUL



Page 78



Spratley 5.0mmSpratley 2.0mmSpratley 3.5mm

Spratley 2.0mmSpratley 3.5mm

B   Complete buildings

Spratley 5.0mm

A_Structural GridA_Text AreasA_Text General_NotesA_XRef SpratleyA_XRef StructureA_XRef M+EA_XRef Product_OtherC45 Damp proof course renewal_insertion

D30 PilingE   In situ concreteE H In situ concrete HATCHF N Masonry NEW Brick_Block_StoneF H Masonry EXISTING HATCHF30 Accessories for masonry walling_DPC_tiesF31 Precast concrete sills_copings_featuresG10 Structural SteelH   Cladding_covering_curtain wall glazing

H20 Rigid sheet cladding_weatherboarding_zincH60 Plain roof tiling_slatingH70 Metal sheet coverings_flashings_LeadJ   Waterproofing_asphalt_liquid appliedJ42 Single ply layer polymeric sheet roof coveringsK   Linings_Sheathings_PlywoodK10 Plasterboard dry linings_Partitions_MF Ceilings

A_Above

K40 Demountable suspended ceilings gridsK41 Raised access floorsL10E Windows_Rooflights EXISTINGL10N Windows_Rooflights NEWL10R Windows_Rooflights REFERENCE

L20E Doors EXISTINGL20N Doors NEWL20R Doors REFERENCEL30 Stairs_BalustradesL30 Stairs_Balustrades REFERENCEL40 General glazingM10 Cement based levelling_wearing screedsM20 Rendered_Plastered_Roughcast coatingsM40 Ceramic tiling_Stone_Concrete_Mosaic_DitraN11 Domestic kitchen fittingsN13 Sanitary appliancesP10 Insulation_Proofing workP20 Skirtings_Architraves_Cornice_DadoQ40 FencingQ50 Site furniture

Q55 External decks_Boardwalks_PergolasR10 Rainwater drainage systemsR11 Above ground foul drainageR12 Below ground drainageS   Piped supply systems_hot_cold_pipes_irrigationT90 Heating systemsU90 Ventilation systemsV90 General lighting and powerZ Purpose made joinery_metalwork

D   Groundwork_Ground line

A_Behind_Details_ComponentsA_Detail bubbles

F E Masonry EXISTING

A_Dimension ConsultantA_Text Levels_Heights

D45 UnderpinningF E Masonry EXISTING BACKGROUNDF N Masonry NEW BACKGROUNDE30 Concrete reinforcementG20 Structural Carpentry_TimbersG30 Structural Metal deck flooring

K20 Timber floor boards_ wall paneling_slatsK10 Plasterboard etc BACKGROUNDK H Timber_plaster_fine HATCHESJ40 Flexible sheet waterproofing _ DPMK32 Panel cubicles_duct and wall linings_vanity units

M50 Carpet tiling_Rubber_Vinyl_Cork

A_Floor Level GridC20 Demolition Furnishings_Fixings_Text

C
om

m
on Lane

Ha
rp

sd
en

 R
oa

d

Spratley 5.0mmSpratley 2.0mmSpratley 3.5mm

Spratley 2.0mmSpratley 3.5mm

Spratley 5.0mm

B   Complete buildingsA_Structural GridA_Text AreasA_Text General_NotesA_XRef SpratleyA_XRef StructureA_XRef M+EA_XRef Product_OtherC20 DemolitionC45 Damp proof course renewal_insertion

D30 PilingE   In situ concreteE H In situ concrete HATCHF N Masonry NEW Brick_Block_StoneF H Masonry EXISTING HATCHF30 Accessories for masonry walling_DPC_tiesF31 Precast concrete sills_copings_featuresG10 Structural SteelH   Cladding_covering_curtain wall glazing

H20 Rigid sheet cladding_weatherboarding_zincH60 Plain roof tiling_slatingH70 Metal sheet coverings_flashings_LeadJ   Waterproofing_asphalt_liquid appliedJ42 Single ply layer polymeric sheet roof coveringsK   Linings_Sheathings_PlywoodK10 Plasterboard dry linings_Partitions_MF Ceilings

A_Above

K40 Demountable suspended ceilings gridsK41 Raised access floorsL10E Windows_Rooflights EXISTINGL10N Windows_Rooflights NEWL10R Windows_Rooflights REFERENCE

L20E Doors EXISTINGL20N Doors NEWL20R Doors REFERENCEL30 Stairs_BalustradesL30 Stairs_Balustrades REFERENCEL40 General glazingM10 Cement based levelling_wearing screedsM20 Rendered_Plastered_Roughcast coatingsM40 Ceramic tiling_Stone_Concrete_Mosaic_DitraN   Furniture_EquipmentN11 Domestic kitchen fittingsN13 Sanitary appliancesP10 Insulation_Proofing workP20 Skirtings_Architraves_Cornice_DadoQ31 External plantingQ40 FencingQ50 Site furniture

Q55 External decks_Boardwalks_PergolasR10 Rainwater drainage systemsR11 Above ground foul drainageR12 Below ground drainageS   Piped supply systems_hot_cold_pipes_irrigationT90 Heating systemsU90 Ventilation systemsV90 General lighting and powerZ Purpose made joinery_metalwork

D   Groundwork_Ground line

A_Behind_Details_ComponentsA_Detail bubbles

F E Masonry EXISTING

A_Dimension ConsultantA_Text Levels_Heights

D45 UnderpinningF E Masonry EXISTING BACKGROUNDF N Masonry NEW BACKGROUNDE30 Concrete reinforcementF H Masonry NEW HATCH Brick_Block_StoneG20 Structural Carpentry_TimbersG30 Structural Metal deck flooring

K20 Timber floor boards_ wall paneling_slatsK10 Plasterboard etc BACKGROUNDK H Timber_plaster_fine HATCHESJ40 Flexible sheet waterproofing _ DPMK32 Panel cubicles_duct and wall linings_vanity units

M50 Carpet tiling_Rubber_Vinyl_Cork

A_Floor Level GridC20 Demolition Furnishings_Fixings_Text

1:1250

50200 105 100m
B -

Dwelling moved to avoid 
root protection areas

RW RK

- - - - -

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath
RG9 4 JY

Location Plan

Phillimore Estates

March 2020 1:1250

IDD RK

19.766

PL.1200Planning

B

A Planning update EC RK-

Appendix B

P
age 79



P
age 80



49052

Possible New
Entrance?

A 09/02/21 Dwelling moved to avoid root
protection areas

RW RK
1:200

20 105 15 20m
- - - - -

- - - - -

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath
RG9 4 JY

Proposed Site Plan

Phillimore Estates

Oct 2019 1:200

AD RK

19.766

PL.1001Planning

A

P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



P
age 84



P
age 85



Kitchen

Living

StudyUtility/
Boots

Hall

Cloaks

Snug

Dining

Wood Burning
Stove

- - - - -

- - - - -

1:100

0 1 42 3 5m

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath
RG9 4 JY

Ground Floor Plan

Phillimore Estates

March 2020 1:100

AD RK

19.766

PL.1300PLANNING

A

Ground Floor Plan
1:100

1

A - Planning update RK -

P
age 86



Hall
Family
Bathroom

Bedroom 04

Bedroom 03

Bedroom 02

Laundry

Bedroom 01

 Ensuite

- - - - -

- - - - -

1:100

0 1 42 3 5m

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath
RG9 4 JY

1st Floor Plan

Phillimore Estates

March 2020 1:100

AD RK

19.766

PL.1301PLANNING

A

1st Floor Plan
1:100

1

A Planning update RK --

P
age 87



- - - - -

- - - - -

1:100

0 1 42 3 5m

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath
RG9 4 JY

Roof Plan

Phillimore Estates

March 2020 1:100

AD RK

19.766

PL.1302PLANNING

A

Roof Plan
1:100

1

A Planning update RK --

P
age 88



A - Key plan updated RK -

- - - - -

- - - - -

1:100

0 1 42 3 5 10m

SPRATLEY & PARTNERS . 7 CENTENARY BUSINESS PARK, STATION ROAD,
HENLEY-ON-THAMES, OXFORDSHIRE RG9 1DS . 01491 411277

ISSUED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED. THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH ALL CONSULTANTS INFORMATION. ALL DIMENSIONS
TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DO NOT SCALE. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT.

PROJECT /DESCRIPTION DATE SCALE AT A3 JOB NO

CLIENT

STATUS DRAWING NO

DRAWN REVCHECKED

REV. ISSUED DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED

Fir Grove Cottage
Binfield Heath 
RG9 4 JY

Proposed Car Port
Plans & Elevations

Phillimore Estates

June 2020 1:100

AD RK

19.766

PL.1600Planning

A

KEY PLAN
1:500

North Elevation
1:100

South Elevation
1:100

West Elevation
1:100

East Elevation
1:100

Ground Floor Plan
1:100

Roof Plan
1:100

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S2041/HH 
 APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER 
 REGISTERED 26.7.2021 
 PARISH CHALGROVE 
 WARD MEMBER(S) David Turner 
 APPLICANT Mr David Turner 
 SITE 50 Hardings, Chalgrove, OX44 7TJ 
 PROPOSAL Retrospective planning permission for a radio 

amateur mast, rotator and antenna system. 
 OFFICER Nathaniel Bamsey 

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as the applicant is a district 

councillor representing the ward of Chalgrove.  
 

1.2 The application site is 50 Hardings, a link detached dwelling in the village of 
Chalgrove. Neighbouring properties are to the north and south. The car park/access 
road to Chalgrove Recreation Ground is immediately to the east with Chalgrove 
Community Primary School further beyond. An OS extract showing the site’s location 
is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

1.3 This application seeks planning permission to retain an amateur radio mast, rotor and 
antenna system.  
 

1.4 Planning permission is required as the structure exceeds the limits for antennae given 
by Class H of Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (GPDO). A structure has existed 
in this location for approximately six years, but this was replaced with the current 
structure in 2019 so the time in which enforcement action can be taken has not 
expired.  
 

1.5 The structure is 2.6m high when retracted, with a 2.5m spread to the antenna ends. 
When in use, the mast is raised to 10m. 
 

1.6 Copies of the plans and photo accompanying the application are attached at 
Appendix 2. Full copies of the plans and supporting information together with 
consultation responses are available for inspection on the council’s website at 
www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Chalgrove Parish Council - Support 

 
Env. Protection Team  - No objection 
 
Countryside Access  - No response at time of writing 
 
Neighbours - No objection, subject to condition (1)‘we would like to confirm that we will 
not object to the order as long as the agreement by David Turner that the ariel is 
erected during use and lowered when not in use.’ 
 
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2041/HH


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 Nothing relevant. 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The proposed development is not Schedule 1 or 2 development as defined by the 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, 
so an Environmental Impact Assessment is not required.  

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

  
 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 

DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES7  -  Efficient Use of Resources 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
ENV6  -  Historic Environment 
ENV9  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
ENV12  -  Pollution - Potential Sources of Pollution 
INF3  -  Telecommunications Technology 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Chalgrove Neighbourhood Plan 
 
C1  -  Location of Development 
C2  -  Design and Character 

  
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 

  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance 

(PPG) 
 

5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 

 Human Rights Act 1998 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 Principle of the development 

 Design and character 

 Residential amenity 

 Access and parking 

 Other material planning considerations 
 

 

Page 92



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

6.2 Principle of the development 
 
Policy INF3 mostly relates to large-scale commercial installations but the criteria given 
are considered relevant to this application. The policy supports new telecommunication 
development provided the siting and appearance of the apparatus minimises the impact 
on visual amenity and that the applicant has explored the possibility of erecting the 
apparatus on existing buildings or structures. As this development is within the curtilage 
of a dwelling it is not reasonable to require alternative sites to have been considered. 
The principle of providing antennae specifically within the curtilage of a dwelling is 
supported by Class H of the GPDO (albeit for smaller installations than the proposed). 
 
Taken together, officers consider that the principle of the development is acceptable 
provided the apparatus does not harm visual amenity and it accords with the policies of 
the development plan as a whole. 
 

6.3 Design and character 
 
Policy  
 
Policy DES1 requires new development to be of high-quality design. The policy gives a 
wide range of measures against which development will be assessed, including efficient 
use of land, net gains and no net loss of biodiversity, sustainability and respect for local 
character and context. This respect for local character is echoed by policy DES2 which 
requires new development to be designed to reflect the positive features that make up 
the character of the local area and it should both physically and visually enhance and 
complement the surroundings.  
 
Policy C2 of the Neighbourhood Plan also requires development to reflect and enhance 
the character of Chalgrove. The policy sets out the criteria against which the design of 
development will be judged, including the use of traditional materials, on-plot parking 
and protection of views into and out of the village.  
 
Discussion  
 
The position of the site next to the car park for the recreation ground means the mast is 
visible to users of the park and the public footpath. When retracted, the structure can be 
seen over the rear fence, but its low height prevents any harm to visual amenity as its 
visual impact is limited. 
 
When extended, the height of the antenna is such that it is seen both to the rear and 
front of the dwelling. The lightweight design of the antenna means that despite its 
significant height it is not considered to be significantly harmful to visual amenity and 
local character. The mast being permanently extended would be harmful to visual 
amenity, so it is recommended that a condition is attached requiring the mast to be 
retracted when not in use. It is also recommended that a condition is applied requiring 
the apparatus be removed and the site restored to its former condition should the mast 
no longer be required. 
 
Subject to the recommended conditions, officers hold that the structure does not harm 
visual amenity nor local character and as such the development accords with policies 
DES1, 2 & C2 of the development plan. 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

6.4 Residential amenity 
 
Policy  
 
Policy DES6 requires development proposals to demonstrate that they will not 
significantly impact the amenity of neighbouring uses in relation to loss of privacy, 
daylight or sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion, noise or vibration, smell, dust, heat, 
odour, gases or other emissions, pollution, contamination or the use of / or storage of 
hazardous substances and external lighting. Policy ENV12 states that development  
should be designed to ensure that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on 
human health, the natural environment and/or the amenity of neighbouring uses 
 
Discussion  
 
The lightweight design of the structure and it’s siting away from the boundary with the 
northern neighbour and beside the garage of the neighbour to the south are considered 
to prevent harm to neighbours through overshadowing, overdominance nor visual 
intrusion even when fully extended. 
 
The environmental protection officer was consulted on the application and raises no 
concerns so it is held that the radio waves received/omitted from the mast would not be 
harmful to the health of local residents.    
 
As neighbours are not harmed officers consider that the application complies with 
policies DES6 & ENV12. 
 

6.5 Access and parking 
 
Policy  
 
Policy TRANS5 requires development proposals to provide for a safe and convenient 
access for all users to the highway network, provide cycle parking where relevant, be 
served by an adequate road network which can accommodate traffic without creating 
traffic hazards or damage to the environment, be designed to enable charging of plug-
in and other lower emission vehicles, provide for loading, unloading, circulation and 
turning space and provide for the parking of vehicles in accordance with Oxfordshire 
County Council (OCC) parking standards, unless specific evidence is provided to justify 
otherwise. 
 
Discussion  
 
The radio mast does not intensify the use of the site nor does it affect the current 
access and parking arrangements nor cause obstruction/distraction to highway users. 
Therefore, officers consider that the development accords with policy TRANS5. 
 

6.6 Other material planning considerations 
 
Sustainability  
 
Policy  
 
DES7 requires development proposals to make provision for the effective use and 
protection of natural resources where applicable. This includes the efficient use of land, 
minimising waste, maximising passive solar heating, lighting, natural ventilation, energy 
and water efficiency and the re-use of materials.  

Page 94



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 22 September 2021 

 

 
Policy DES8 requires all development proposals to demonstrate that they are seeking 
to limit greenhouse emissions through location, building orientation, design, landscape 
and planting taking into account any nationally adopted standards. Development should 
also be designed to improve resilience to the anticipated effects of climate change and 
be built to last. 
 
Discussion  
 
The requirements of policies DES7 & 8 are not considered relevant to this application, 
particularly given its retrospective nature.  

  
6.7 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
The development is not CIL liable. 

  
6.8 Pre-commencement conditions 

 
No pre-commencement conditions are recommended so the agreement of the 
applicant/agent is not required.  

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted because the principle of the 

development is acceptable and there is no harm to visual amenity, neighbour amenity 
nor highway safety. Therefore, it is concluded that the application complies with the 
relevant policies of the adopted development plan and the NPPF. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions 

 
 1 : Approved plans  

2 : Remove and restore when no longer required 
3 : Retract when not in use 
4 : Chalgrove Neighbourhood Plan Policies 
 

 
Author:          Nat Bamsey 
Contact No:  01235 422600 
Email:            Planning@southoxon.giv.uk 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 97

Agenda Item 11P21/S2041/HH



Appendix 2

Page 98



Page 99



Patricia Newman Practice 
CHARTERED BUILDING SURVEYORS 

PO Box 345, Wallingford 
 Oxfordshire, OX10 1FE 

Tel: 0796 2222 103 
Email: info@patricianewmanpractice.co.uk 

 
 

50 Hardings, Chalgrove 
 
 

 
 
 
The above photograph shows the established mast, rotator and antenna system.  
It is 2.6m high as shown, with a 2.5m spread to the antenna ends, contained wholly 
within the applicant’s rear garden. When in use it is required to be extended to 10m 
high, via the hand pump at the mast base. Its position is shown on the Block plan. 

Page 100


	Agenda
	7 P21/S2624/FUL - 114 Broadway, Didcot
	Appendices 1-3
	1 OS extract Appendix1
	2 Elevations of 2008 approved scheme Appendix 2
	2a Elevations of approved 2008 scheme 2 Appendix 2
	3 Site Plan Proposed Appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	PL-06


	3a  Elevations Existing appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	PL-04


	3b Elevations Existing Appendix 3 (2)
	Sheets and Views
	PL-05


	3c Elevation Proposed Appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	PL-10


	3d Elevations Proposed Appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	PL-09


	3f Floor Ground & First Plans Proposed Appendix3a
	Sheets and Views
	PL-07


	3g Floor Second & Roof Plan Proposed Appendix3a
	Sheets and Views
	PL-08




	8 P20/S2809/HH and P20/S2812/LB - 11 Thameside, Henley-on-Thames
	Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1 - location plan
	Appendix 2 - a Elevations Existing
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA-E05


	Appendix 2 - b Block Plan Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P01


	Appendix 2 - c Rear Elevation Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P06A


	Appendix 2 - d Rear Elevation Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P06


	Appendix 2 - e Side Elevation Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P07


	Appendix 2 - f Demolitions Plan
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA1-P18


	Appendix 2 - g Ground Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P02


	Appendix 2 - h First Floor Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P03


	Appendix 2 - i Second Floor Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P04


	Appendix 2 - j Roof Plan Proposed
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P05


	Appendix 2 - k Proposed 3D Views 1 P08
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P08


	Appendix 2 - l Proposed 3D Views 2 P09
	Sheets and Views
	TS-7519-PA2-P09




	9 P20/S0510/FUL - Land to rear of 16 Reading Road, Henley-on-Thames
	Appendices A-C
	A Location Plans
	B Decision Notice 2
	C Floor Plans, Elevations, Block Plan Proposed drwgno C166.12D
	Sheets and Views
	C166 propC 3 flats rev D-C166.12D




	10 P20/S1991/FUL - Land next to Oak House Cottage, track leading to Box Cottage Common Lane, Binfield Heath
	Appendices A-B
	Appendix A.1
	Appendix A.2
	Appendix B.1
	Sheets and Views
	PL.1200


	Appendix B.2
	Appendix B.3
	Sheets and Views
	A3_Landscape


	Appendix B.4
	Appendix B.5
	Appendix B.6
	Appendix B.7
	Appendix B.8
	Sheets and Views
	PL.1300


	Appendix B.9
	Sheets and Views
	PL.1301


	Appendix B.10
	Sheets and Views
	PL.1302


	Appendix B.11
	Sheets and Views
	PL.1600




	11 P21/S2041/HH - 50 Hardings, Chalgrove
	Appendices 1-2
	1 Location Plan
	2 Block Plan Dwg BLO-001
	2a Location Plan Dwg LOC-001
	2b Elevation Photo



